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Dear Sirs, ’
Rule 12g3 — 2 (b) Exemption Documents: Insurance Australia Group Limited,
file no 82-34821 '
Please find attached documents submitted in accordance with Rule 12g3 — 2(b) for
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Insurance Australia
Group Limited

ABN 60 090 739 923

388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222
iag.com.au

)
IAG

Insurance
Australia
Group

17 February 2005

Manager, Company Announcements Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
- Level 4, Exchange Centre
20 Bridge Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Dear SirfMadam

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (1AG’)

SPECULATION RE ASIAN EXPANSION

Following media speculation concerning IAG's Asian expansion plans, I1AG
confirms that it has no update to provide to the market on this topic.

IAG has made it clear through a number of previous market communications that
Asia is a focus for potential acquisitions to provide additional earnings growth for
the medium to long term. IAG has been researching possible opportunities
offshore for a number of years now and, as part of that research, has spoken to
many general insurers in Asia, including China Pacific Insurance Company
(‘CPIC'"). However, we have no update to our plans and nothing to announce.

IAG is aware of its continuous disclosure obligations and will update the market
should anything change.

Yours sincerely

Anne O'Driscoll
Group Company Secretary &
Head of Investor Relations
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MEDIA STATEMENT Group

Insurance Australia Group Limited
23 February 2005 ABN 60090 739 23
388 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
iag.com.au

TIAG statement regarding Whitlam retirement case

The New South Wales Supreme Court today ruled that former Chairman Mr Nicholas
Whitlam is entitled to some amounts in addition to the retirement benefit already paid. These
comprise interest that would have accrued during the time the payment was delayed,
superannuation, and interest on the superannuation amount.

The Board of IAG believes it acted in accordance with the interests of the company and its
shareholders in deferring the payment until the outcome of a Special General Meeting was
known, and until ASIC proceedings against Mr Whitlam were concluded.

IAG is assessing further the full implications of the judgement.
Mr Whitlam served as a director of NRMA Motoring & Services (formerly NRMA Limited)

and then Chairman of IAG (formerly NRMA Insurance Group Limited) from 1995 until his
retirement in April 2001.

Media Relations Investor Relations

Name Will Sargent Name Anne O’Driscoll
(02) 9292 9466 ' Telephone (02) 9292 3169

Mobile 0411 012 835 Mobile 0411012 675
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82-34821

Rule 2.7,3.10.3, 3.10.4, 3.10.5

Appendix 3B

New issue annbuncement
appllcatlon for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX'’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002.

Name of entity

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED

ABN
60 090 739 923

We (the entity) give ASX the following informatiqn.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections (attach sheets if there is not enough space).

1 *Class of *securities issued or to be Fully paid ordinary shares
issued

2 Number of *securities issued or to be 75,000
issued (if known) or maximum number
which may be issued

3 Principal terms of the *securities (eg, if | On the same terms as existing Ordinary

options, exercise price and expiry date; | Shares listed on ASX.
if partly paid *securities, the amount

outstanding and due dates for payment;
if *convertible securities, the conversion
price and dates for conversion)

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc Appendix 3B Page |



4 Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment with
an existing *class of quoted *securities?

If the additional securities do not rank

equally, please state:

o the date from which they do

o the extent to which they participate
for the next dividend, (in the case of
a trust, distribution) or interest
payment

o the extent to which they do not rank
equally, other than in relation to the
next dividend, distribution or interest
payment

5  lIssue price or consideration

6  Purpose of the issue
(Ifissued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

7 Dates of entering *securities into
uncertificated holdings or despatch of
certificates

8 Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX {including the
securities in clause 2 if applicable)

Yes

An exercise price of $1 has been paid by
each holder upon the exercise of the
Performance Share Rights irrespective of the
number rights exercised by that holder, ie $4

in total.

Shares were issued on exercise of employee

Performance Share Rights

28 February 2005

Number *Class

1,593,896,553 . Ordinary Shares

3,500,000 Reset Preference
Shares (IAGPA)

2,000,000 v/ Reset Preference
Shares (IAGPB)

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc
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Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Number

+Class

Number and *class of all *securities
not quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 2 if applicable)

1,291,419

Options over
unissued shares

Dividend policy (in the case of a frust,
distribution policy) on the increased

capital (interests)

The Ordinary Shares will, from the date of
allotment, carry the right to participate in

dividends

Is security holder approval required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-

renounceable?

Ratio in which the *securities will be
offered

*Class of *securities to which the offer
relates

*Record date to determine entitlements

Will holdings on different registers (or
subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitiements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the entity
has *security holders who will not be
sent new issue documents

Note: Security holders must be told how
their entitlements are to be dealt with.

Cross reference: rule 7.7.

Closing date for receipt of acceptances
or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc
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21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Ky

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee payable to
brokers who lodge acceptances or
renunciations on behalf of *security
holders

If the issue is contingent on *security
holders' approval, the date of the
meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance form
and prospectus or Product Disclosure
Statement will be sent to persons
entitled

If the entity has issued options, and the
terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable) .

How do *security holders sell their
entittements in fufl through a broker?

How do *security holders sell part of
their entitlements through a broker and
accept for the balance?

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc
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32 How do *security holders dispose of
their entittlements {except by sale
through a broker)? '

33 *Despatch date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities

34 Type of securities

(tick one)
(a) v Securities described in Part 1
(b) - | Allother securities

. Example: restricted securities at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully
paid, employee incentive share securities when restriction ends, securities issued on expiry or conversion of
convertible securities -

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities
(If the additional securities do not form a new class, go to 43)

Tick to indicate you are providing the information or documents

35 if the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the additional
*securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by those holders

36 If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional *securities setting
out the number of holders in the categories

1-1,000

1,001 - 5,000

5,001 - 10,000

10,001 - 100,000

100,001 and over

37 A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

(now go to 43)

+‘ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc Appendix 3B Page S



Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38

39

40

41

42

Number of securities for which
*+quotation is sought

Class of *securities for which quotation
is sought

Do the *securities rank equally in alf
respects from the date of allotment with
an existing *class of quoted *securities?

If the additional securities do not rank

equally, please state:

« the date from which they do

o the extent to which they participate
for the next dividend, (in the case of
a frust, distribution) or interest
payment

o the extent to which they do not rank
equally, other than in relation to the
next dividend, distribution or interest
payment

Reason for request for quotation now

Example: In the case of restricted securities,

end of restriction period
(if issued upon conversion of another

security, clearly identify that other
security)

Number and *class of all *securities

. quoted on ASX (including the securities

in clause 38)

(now go to 43)

Number

+Class

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc
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All entities

Fees

43 Payment method (tick one)

v~ Cheque

Electronic payment made

Note: Payment may be made electronically if Appendix 3B is given to ASX electronically at the same time,

Periodic payment as agreed with the home branch has been arranged

" Note: Arrangements can be made for employee incentive schemes that involve frequent issues of securities.

Quotation agreement

1 *Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may
quote the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for
an illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

. An offer of the “securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the
Corporations Act.

Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate warranties from subscribers for the securities in order to be able
to give this warranty

. Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and that no-
one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under sections 737, 738 or
1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we request that the *securities be
quoted.

. If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the
*securities to be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the
time that we request that the *securities be quoted.

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc Appendix 3B Page 7



3 We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in this
agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any
information or document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of
the *securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

L rar ] |
Date: 24 February 2005
Company Secretary

Sign here:

Print name: Glenn Revell

* See éhapter 19 for defined terms.

240205 appendix 3b.doc Appendix 3B Page 8



ABN 60 090 739 923
388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222
iag.com.au

24 February 2005

Manager, Company Announcements Ofﬁcé J )Z |

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre
20 Bridge Street | 1AG
SYDNEY NSW 2000 ‘ Insurance

Australia
Group

Dear Sir/Madam
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG’)
FINANCIAL RESULTS - HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Attached for immediate release to the market is Insurance Australia Group Limited’s
Appendix 4D — Half Year Ended 31 December 2004.

The documents below will be lodged separately:

1. Media Release;
2. . Investor Report — 31 December 2004; and
3. Investor Presentation Slides.

Yours sincerely

Anne O’Driscoll _
Group Company Secretary &
Head of Investor Relations

Attachment (28 pages)
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED
ABN 60 090 739 923

HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2004

APPENDIX 4D
CONTENTS
~Page Number
Results for announcement to the market | v , 1
Other Information 2
Appendix 4D compliance matrix 3

Attachment A:
Half year financial report — 31 December 2004 5



APPENDIX 4D - HALF YEAR REPORT 31 'DECEMBER".‘Z:OO'J{

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

Up/down % change $m
Revenue from ordinary activities Up 9.6% 4,278
Profit from ordinary activities after tax ' ' Up 47.7% 446
attributable to shareholders
Net profit attributable to shareholders of Up 47.7% 446
Insurance Australia Group Limited
Dividends - ordinary shares Amount per share Franked amount per share
Interim dividend 12 cents | 12 cents

- The record date of the dividend is 16 March 2005. The dividend is to be paid on 18 April 2005. The last date for the
receipt of an election notice for participation in the company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan-is 16 March 2005.

Page 1
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APP[_ENDlX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2004

OTHER INFORMATION

During the half year the Insurance Australia Group held an interest in the following joint ventures:

NTI Limited

) % Held
50

- The company’s aggregate share of profits of these entities is not material.

Page 2




INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED

' APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2004

APPENDIX 4D COMPLIANCE MATRIX

| Appendix 4D disclosure requirements

Insurance Australia Group Appendix 4D

Page
Number

Note
Number

1.

Details of the reporting period and the
previous corresponding period.

All financial data headings

2.

21

2.2

Key information in relation to the
following. This information must be
identified as “Results for announcement
to the market”.

The amount and percentage change up
or down from the previous corresponding
period of revenue from ordinary activities.

The amount and percentage change up
or down from the previous corresponding
period of profit (loss) from ordinary
activities after tax attributable to
members.

2.3 The amount and percentage change up or

down from the previous corresponding
period of net profit (loss) for the period
attributable to members.

2.4 The amount per security and franked

25

2.6

amount per security of final and interim
dividends or a statement that it is not
proposed to pay dividends.

The record date for determining |

entitiements to the dividends (if any).

A brief explanation of any of the figures in
2.1 to 2.4 necessary to enable the figures
to be understood.

“Results for announcement to the market” page 1
Appendix 4D

Net tangible assets per security with the
comparative figure for the previous
corresponding period.

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2004:
¢ Notes to the financial statements

- Net tangible assets.

P.14

Note 12

4.1
4.2

4.3

Details of entities over which control has
been gained or lost during the period,
including the following.

Name of theentity.
The date of the gain or loss of control.

Where material to an understanding of
the report — the contribution of such
entities to the reporting entity’s profit from
ordinary activities during the period and
the profit or loss of such entities during
the whole of the previous corresponding
period.

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2004:
s  Notes to the financial statements
- Changes in the composition of the
consolidated entity

P.11

Note 8

Page 3
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APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2004

Details of individual and total dividends or
distributions and dividend or distribution

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2004:

payments. The details must include the | ¢  Notes to the financial statements

date on which each dividend or - Dividends note P.11 Note 7
distribution is payable and (if known) the

amount per security of foreign sourced

dividend or distribution. ' '

Details of any dividend or distribution | Attachment A: Half year financial report 31 )
reinvestment plan in operation and the | December 2004:

last date for the receipt of an election | ¢«  Notes to the financial statements ’ _
notice for participation in any dividend or - Dividend note P.11 Note 7

distribution reinvestment plan.

Details of associates and joint venture
entities including the name of the
associate or joint venture entity and
details of the reporting entity’s percentage
holding in each of these entities and -
where material to an understanding of the
report - aggregate share of profits
(losses) of these entities, details of
contributions to net profit for each of
these entities, and with comparative
figures for each of these disclosures for
the previous corresponding period.

“Other information” page 2 Appendix 4D

For foreign entities, which set of
accounting standards is used in compiling
the report (e.g. International Accounting
Standards).

Not applicable

For all entities, if the accounts are subject
to audit dispute or qualification, a
description of the dispute or qualification.

Not applicable

Page 4
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APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2004

ATTACHMENT A

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

HALF YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT - 31 DECEMBER 2004

Page 5



INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED
ABN 60.090739:923
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
HALF YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT - 31 DECEMBER 2004

o1

G.;,‘,./ H

CONTENTS
Page No.
Directors’ Report 1
- Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration 3
Statement of Financial Performance 4
Statement of Financial Position _ 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6
Notes to the Financial Statements 7
Directors’ Declaration 20
Independent Auditors’ Review Report 21

Insurance Australia Group Limited is a publicly listed company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its
registered office and principal place of business is level 26, 388 George Street, Sydney, NSW 2000.



INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED ANT. ' LE, ENTITIES

-3

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial report of Insurance Australia Group Limited (“IAG” / “the
Company”’) and its controlied entities (“the IAG Group™) for the half year ended 31 December 2004 and the audltors review report
thereon.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during or since the end of the half year are:

Mr JA Strong (Director since 2 August 2001), Ms YA Allen (Director since 10 November 2004), Mr JF Astbury (Director since 25
July 2000), Mr GA Cousins (Director since 25 July 2000), Ms DG Fisher (Director from 19 June 2000 to 10 November 2004),
Mr ND Hamilton (Director since 19 June 2000), Ms AJ Keating (Director from 19 June 2000 to 10 November 2004), Mr RA Ross
(Director since 25 July 2000), Mr B Schwartz (Director since 1 January 2005) and Mr MJ Hawker (Director since 1 December
2001).

Result and review of operations

The IAG Group net profit for the half year was $504 million (2003 - $348 million). After adjusting for outside equity interests in the
1IAG Group result, the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was $446 million (2003 - $302 million).

The key components for the half year result were:

¢ Strong underwriting profit of $255 million for the half year compared to $277 million in 2003. Excluding the impact of interest
rate movements during the period on outstandmg clmms provisions, the underwriting proﬁt for the half year is $320 million (2003
- $179 million). The quality of the resuit was agam driven by strong performance of all major business segments. ,

» The strength of the underwntmg result and the synergy benefits from the CGU/NZI acquisition contributed to an improvement in
the insurance margin to 16.7% (2003 - 11 8%) The insurance margm achieved currently exceeds the IAG Group’s long-term
expectation of 9% - 12%.

Gross written premium was $3,329 million, representmg organic growth of 6.0% on the same period last year (33, 140 million).
The expense ratio (underwriting expenses to net earned premium) of 25.3% compares to 24.9% for the same period last year. The
increase is attributable to an increase in commission expense and fire brigade charges.

e The IAG Group’s combined ratio of 91.8% (2003 — 90.5%) includes a negative impact of $65 million in discount rate adjustments
on outstanding claims provision compared with a $98 million benefit in 2003. Excluding the impact of interest rates movements
during the period on outstanding claims provisions, the combined ratio is 89.7% (2003 — 93.8%).

o The improvement in the combined ratio (excluding the impact of interest rates) reflects an underlying improvement of the IAG
Group’s underwriting business over the last 12 months. This improvement has been due to the synergy benefits in claims
management and processes, reserve releases from key long-tail portfolios as a result of continued stability in the New South Wales
CTP scheme, better than expected loss experience in liability classes and a continmation of favourable weather resulting in lower
levels of storm damage. These benefits have been partly offset by the strengthening of asbestos reserves. :

* During the half year, the continued strength of equity markets delivered a 23.4% annualised return on shareholders’ funds, while
the decrease in bond yields had a positive impact on investment returns on technical reserves. Total investment income included
in the consolidated net profit before tax for the half year was $574 million (2003 - $286 million).

The IAG Group recognised an income tax expense of $219 million for the half year ended 31 December 2004 compared to
$136 million in 2003, representing an effective tax rate of 30.3% (2003 - 28.1%). The lower effective tax rate for the 2003 half year
was due to the recognition of a once-off benefit of $22 million as a result of the IAG Group forming a tax consohdated group in line
- with changes in tax legislation.

Further information on the IAG Group’s result and review of operations can be found in the 31 December 2004 Investor Report on
the Company’s website, www.iag.com.au.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 3 and forms part of the directors’ report for the half year ended 31
December 2004.

Events subsequent to reporting date
Details of matters subsequent to the end of the financial period are set out in note 13. These include:
o adividend declared of 12 cents per ordinary share. The Dividend Reinvestment Plan will operate using shares acquired on
market with no discount applied; ’
¢ the issue and listing of Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES);
e the appointment of Mr Brian Schwartz as a director of the Company; and
» the impact of the introduction of Australian equivalents of the International Financial Reporting Standards. .
Dividends
Details of dividends declared are set out in note 7.
Rounding of amounts
Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report and Dlrecfors’ ’{épm have been rounded to the nearest million dollars. The

Company is of a kind referred to in the class order 98/100 dated Y6 uly 1998 1ssued by the Australian Securities & Investments
Commission. All roundmg has been conducted in accordance ‘With .that class order

Signed at Sydney this 24th day of F ebruar§ 2005 iﬂ 'accordérrce with a resoiution of the Directors.

[T Director



LEAD AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

To: the directors of Insurance Australia Group Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the review for the half year ended 31 December 2004 there have
been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the review;
and '

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review.

46

KPMG

o,
ekt

Dr Afidries B Terblanché
Partner

Sydney
24th February 2005

KPMG, an Australian partnership, is a member
of KPMG International, a Swiss non-operating
association.




STATEMENT OF FINS NGRS, . - ANCE FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Premium revenue
Reinsurance expense

Net premium revenue .

Claims expense
Reinsurance and other recoveries

Net claims expense

Acquisition costs.
Other underwriting expenses
Fire brigade charges

Underwriting expenses
Profit from underwriting

Investment revenue
Other operating revenue
Borrowing costs expense

Corporate, administration and other expenses

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax

Income tax expense

Net profit

Net profit attributable to outside equity interests

Net profit attributable to shareholders of Insurance

Australia Group Limited

Non-owner transaction changes in equity:

Net exchange difference on translation of financial reports of

~ foreign controlled entities

" Total changes in equity from non-owner related
transactions attributable to the shareholders of the parent

entity

Basic earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per reset preference share
Diluted earnings per ordinary share ’

Note:

(i) Profit from underwriting comprises:

Net premium revenue
Net claims expense
Underwriting expenses

The above statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Notes

3(a)

3(a)

3(b)
3()

5(a)
5(b)
5(a)

CONSOLIDATED

31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
$m $m
3,311 3,116
(202) (204)
3,109 2912
(2,349) (2,217)
282 308
(2,067) (1,909)
(534) (507)
(166) (164)
87 (55)
(787) (726)
255 277
574 286
106 188
(28) (29
(184) (238)
723 484
(219) (136)
504 348
(58) (46)
446 302
1 -

447 302
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
cents cents
27.06 17.07
267.27 265.03
27.01 17.01
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
$m $m
3,109 2912
(2,067) (1,909)
(787) (726)
255 277




Assets

Cash assets

Investments

Receivables

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable
Inventories

. Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments

Deferred levies

Deferred reinsurance premium

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred tax assets

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Total assets
Liabilities

Payables

Restructuring provision
Current tax liabilities
Unearned premium
Employee benefits provision
Deferred tax liabilities
Outstanding claims liability
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Equity
Contributed equity

Foreign currency translation reserve
Accumulated losses

Equity attributable to shareholders of Insurance Australia

Group Limited ‘
Outside equity interests in controlled entities
Total equity

9(a)
9(b)
9(c)

9(d)

Tr T
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS A% 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 30 Jun
2004 2004
$m $m
465 424
9,944 9,686
2,156 2,348
916 915

2 2

246 231
70 63
105 104
111 184
582 558
255 296

7 7

12 18
1,412 1,455
16,283 16,291
730 937
13 29

63 222
3,497 3,472
157 188
176 99
6,548 6,327
794 793
11,978 12,067
4305 4,224
3,802 3,802
) 5)
1) (259)
3,747 3,538
558 686
4,305 4,224

The above statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMEN'I v _"Fwws FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Yot T TR <

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
Note 2004 2003
$m $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Premium received 3,347 3,375
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 237 186 |
Claims costs paid (2,095) (2,046)
Outwards reinsurance premium paid ' (123) - (204)"

* Dividends received 55 52
Interest and similar items received 244 236
Borrowing costs paid (32) (28)
Income tax refund 9 7
Income tax paid ' (259) o (68)
Other operating receipts , 343 t307.
Other operating payments (1,295) (1,123)
Net cash provided by operating activities ' ' 431 694.
Cash flows from investing activities ‘ '

Net cash flows on disposal of a controlled entity 8 - 48
Proceeds from disposal of investments and property, plant and equipment 11,057 11,561
Outlays for investments and property, plant and equipment acquired (11,036) (12,134)
Repayment of premium funding loans 180 146
Advances of premium funding loans 225) . (167)
Net cash used in investing activities (24) (546)
Cash flows from financing activities g
Outlays for return of capital to outside equity interests - - (56)
Proceeds from issues of trust units _ 468 629
Outlays for redemption of trust units (544) "~ (569)
Proceeds from borrowings ' - 487
Repayment of borrowings - (515)
Dividends paid to IAG shareholders (238) -(132)

" Dividends paid to outside equity interests . (52) (34)
Net cash used in financing activities ' (366) (190)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held . 41 42)
Cash at the beginning of the financial period T 424 626
Cash at the end of the financial period © : 465 584

Notes:

(i) Cash represents cash on hand and in banks, deposits at call and money market investments readily convertible to cash within two
working days, net of bank overdraft.

The above statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.



INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENT TIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF Y'EAR LNDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Note 1. Statement of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of ha‘lf-year financial report

The half year consolidated financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB 1029: Interim Financial Reporting, the recognition and
measurement requirements of applicable AASB standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and Urgent Issues Group consensus views. This half year financial report is to be read in conjunction with the 30 June 2004
Annual Financial Report and any public announcements by Insurance Australia Group Limited and its controlled entities during the half
year in accordance with continuous disclosure obligations arising under the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Stock Exchange
Listing Rules.

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied by each entity in the IAG Group and are consistent with those applied in
the 30 June 2004 Annual Financial Report unless otherwise mentioned. The half year report does not include full note disclosures of the
type normally included in an annual financial report.

The statement of financial position has been prepared using the liquidity format of presentation and differs from the presentation as
disclosed in the 30 June 2004 Annual Financial Report. The change has been made as it is considered more meaningful to emphasise
the importance of liquidity to the users of the accounts, The opportunity for the change has arisen from changes in disclosure
requirements as Australia adopts new accounting standards in 2005 (refer note 13). Certain reclassifications have been made from the
prior period’s financial report to conform to the current period’s presentation. o

Note 2. Current/non-current information

While the IAG Group presents the statement of financial position using the liquidity format, there are spec1ﬁc dlSClOSUI'e requirements
regarding current/non-current classifications for certain items.

CONSOLIDATED
Current Non-current Total
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2004
$m ' $m $m
Assets
Investments 2,611 7,333 9,944
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 350 566 916
Deferred levies 105 - 105
Deferred reinsurance premium 111 - 111
Deferred acquisition costs 550 32 582
Deferred tax assets - 255 255
Liabilities
Unearned premium 3,404 93 3,497
Employee benefits provision 127 30 157
Deferred tax liabilities - 176 176
Outstanding claims liability 2,243 4,305 6,548
Interest-bearing liabilities 46 748 794
30 Jun 2004 30 Jun 2004 30 Jun 2004
$m $m $m
Assets
Investments 2,474 7,212 9,686
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 368 547 915
Deferred levies 104 - 104
Deferred reinsurance premium 184 - 184
Deferred acquisition costs 527 31 558
Deferred tax assets - 296 296
Liabilities
Uneamed premium 3,386 86 3,472
Employee benefits provision 151 37 188
Deferred tax liabilities - 99 99
Outstanding claims liability 2,202 4,125 6,327
Interest-bearing liabilities - 793 793
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Note 2. Current/non-current information (continued)

All items of investment in joint ventures and associates, property, plant and equipment, intangible and goodwill assets are non-current
assets. Cash assets, receivables and other assets are all current assets. All other liabilities are current liabilities.

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
: $m $m
Note 3. Revenue from ordinary activities
Revenue from operating activities
_ (a) General insurance revenue
 Direct gross written premium . , o 3,329 3,140
Movement in unearned premium reserve an (26)
Direct premium revenue , . , 3,312 3,114
. Inwards reinsurance premium revenue _ ' R ’ m _ 2
" Premium revenue’ ' _ ' o ’ . L 3311 3,116
Reinsurance and other recoveries BRI SR 282 308
Tot:lsll general insurance revenue Shteme 3,593 3,424
(b) Investment revenue » e e _ ,
Dividend income R TR | C 25
Interest income 197 211
Trust income - o 6 12
: : 251 248
Changes in net market values of investments
- realised gains / (losses) 47 (15)
- unrealised gains o 276 53
Total investment revenue o T 574 286
(c) Other operating revenue
Fee based business revenue : 106 _ 118
Life insurance business revenue - ‘ ' - 70
A 106 188
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 5 5
Total other operating revenue om0 193

Total revenue from operating and ordinary activities ‘ 4,278 3,903
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NOTES TO THE F INANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF )(EAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
Sm $m
Note 4. Analysis of total expenses
Expenses (excluding borrowing costs expense) disclosed on the face of the
statement of financial performance:
Reinsurance expense : 202 204
Claims expense - 2,349 2,217
Acquisition costs ' ’ 534 507
Other underwriting expenses 166 164
Fire brigade charges ‘ 87 55
Corporate, administration and other expenses 184 238
Total expenses : 3,522 3,385
Analysis of expenses by function:
General insurance business expenses - 3,338 3,147
Life insurance business expenses ' - 52
Corporate and administration expenses : 184 186
Total expenses o : 3,522 3,385
CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec ' 31 Dec
20064 2003
cents cents
Note 5. Earnings per share
(a) Ordinary shares
Basic earnings per share . 27.06 17.07
‘Diluted earnings per share : A 27.01 17.01
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
Number . Number
of shares of shares
million million
(i) Reconciliation between basic earnings per share denominator and diluted
earnings per share denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
period used in calculation of the basic earnings per share 1,592 1,683
Potential ordinary shares under the Performance Share Rights Plan:
Expiry date 21 December 2010 - 1
Expiry date 30 April 2011 2 4
Expiry date 13 December 2011 1 1
Expiry date 5 March 2012 . 1 1
Cancelled potential ordinary shares ey 1)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial period used in calculation of the diluted
earnings per share 1,595 , 1,689

Event subsequent to reporting date:

On 31 January 2005, a total of 923,000 ordinary shares were issued as a result of the exercise of vested Performance Share Rights. As
at 31 December 2004, these shares were included as potential ordinary shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share.
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Note 5. Earnings per share (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Net profit
Net profit attributable to outside equity interests

Net profit attributable to shareholders of Insurance Australia Group Lumted

Net profit attributable to reset preference shares

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share

{(b) Reset preference shares

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of reset preference shares
outstanding during the financial period used in calculation of
the basic earnings per share

Net profit used in calculating bésic earnings per share (based
on dividends paid or payable to reset preference shares)

There are no potential reset preference shares on issue.

Note 6. Individually significant items

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax includes the
following items whose disclosure is relevant in explaining the
financial performance of the IAG Group:

Expenses:
Restructuring / integration costs
Insurance protectlorl tax levied by the NSW State Government

Income tax benefit:
Effect of resetting tax values on entering tax consolidation

"RALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
__ FATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

. 31 Dec 31 Dec

2004 2003

$m $m

504 348

(58) (46)

446 302

15) (14)

431 288
CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
cents cents
267.27 265.03
31 Dec 31 Dec
2004 2003
Number Number
of shares of shares
million million
6 6
31 Dec . 31 Dec
2004 2003
$m $m
15 14
- 25
10 10
- 22




: "ITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR LN DED 31 DECEMBER 2004
Half year Year
ended ended
31 Dec 30 Jun
2004 2004
$m $m
Note 7. Dividends
(a) Ordinary shares

Final dividend for year ended 30 June 2004 of 14 cents (year ended 30 June 2003 —
7 cents) per share, paid on 18 October 2004, fully franked at 30% (year ended 30 ’
June 2003 — 30%) . 223 118

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2004 of 8 cents per share, paid on 19
April 2004, fully franked at 30% - 135

{(b) Reset preference shares
Dividend paid on IAGPA at 5.8% per annum and JAGPB at 4.51% per annum,
fully franked at 30% (year ended 30 June 2004 — 30%) 15 29

Total dividends declared and paid by cash o - 238 282

Dividend reinvestment:

The Company operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRP”’) which allows shareholders to elect to receive their dividend entitlement
in the form of IAG shares. The price of DRP shares is the average share market price, less a discount if any (determined by the
Directors) calculated over the pncmg period (which is at least five trading days) as determined by the Directors for each dividend
payment date. The DRP share price in 2004 was with no discount. Shares allocated to shareholders participating in the DRP during the
financial period ended 31 December 2004 were purchased on market (period ended 31 December 2004 — 12 million shares; year ended
30 June 2004 - 19 million shares).

Event subsequent to reporting date:

On 24 February 20035 an interim dividend of 12 cents per ordinary share, 100% franked, was declared by the Company. The DRP will
operate using shares acquired on market with no discount applied. The dividend will be paid on 18 April 2005. The last date for the
receipt of an election notice for participation in the dividend reinvestment plan is 16 March 2005.

Note 8. Changes in the composition of the IAG Group

During the half year ended 31 December 2003, the JAG Group disposed of 100% of the ordinary shares in NRMA Health Pty Limited
effective 25 July 2003.

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
_ 2004 _ 2003
Detail of the disposal is as follows: $m $m
Sale proéeeds:
Cash - 99
Fair value of net assets of controlled entity disposed (including goodwill) - 97
Costs associated with disposal ’ - 4
‘ - 101
Loss on disposal - (2)
Net cashflow on disposal of controlled entity:
Cash proceeds received (net of disposal costs) - 95
Cash balance disposed - “é7
Inflow of cash ‘ - 48

The disposed entity’s contribution to the profit from ordinary activities before income tax of the IAG Group for the period ended 31
December 2003 was $Nil.
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NOTES TO TdE >’ AL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Note 9. Statement of changes in equity

(a) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares

Balance at the beginning of the financial period
Shares issued under Performance Share Rights Plan
Share buy-back

Share buy-back transaction costs

Balance at the end of the financial period
Reset preference shares
Balance at the beginning and end of the financial period

Total contributed equity at the end of the financial period

(b) Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the financial period
Currency translation adjustments

" Balance at the end of the financial period‘

(¢) Accumulated losses

Balance at the beginning of the ﬁnanciél period

Net profit attributable to shareholders of Insurance Australia .

Group Limited
Utilised in share buy-back
Dividends declared and paid

Balance at the end of the financial period

Total equity attributable to shareholders of Insurance
Australia Group Limited

(d) Outside equity interests in controlled entities
- Contributed equity

- Retained profits

- Unitholders’ funds

Balance at the end of the financial period .

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 30 Jun 31 Dec 30 Jun
2004 2004 2004 2004
Number Number
of shares of shares
. million million $m $m
1,591 1,683 3,263 3,434 -
2 2 - .
- 94) - (168)
- - - )
1,593 1,591 3,263 3,263
6 6 539 539
1,599 1,597 3,802 3,802
) )]
. 1 3)
4 (5)
(259) (396)
446 665
- (246)
(238) (282)
(51) (259)
3,747 3,538
124 124
35 39
399 523
558 686
4,305 4,224
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NOTES TO Tili “TIANCY D STA°JoiAENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Note 11. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There have been no material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since 30 June 2004.

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec ‘ 30 Jun
Notes 2004 _ 2004
$ $
Note 12, Net tangible assets
Net tangible assets per ordinary share . (i) 1.12 0.96
Net tangible assets per reset preference share (i1) 100.00 100.00

(i) Net tangible assets per ordinary share has been determined after adjusting for outside equity interests, goodwill and other intangible
assets and the value of reset preference shares on issue.

(ii) Net tangible assets per reset preference share has been reﬂected at the face value of $100 as the entitlement to the net assets in all
circumstances is limited to the face value of the reset preference shares. '

Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date

As these transactions occurred after balance date and did not relate to conditions existing at balance date no account has been taken of
them in the fmancral statements for the half year ended 3L December 2004 F

(a) On 24 February 2005 an interim dividend of 12 cents ;per share, 100% frankea was declared by the Company. The Dividend
Reinvestment Plan will operate using shares acquu’ed on market with no discount apphed The dividend is to be paid on 18 April 2005.

(b) On 1! January 2005, IAG announced the.:‘_lssue of 5.5 mrllron Reset Exchangeable Secuntres (RES) by IAG Finance (New Zealund)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of IAG, raising a total of $550 million. ~The RES began trading on the Australian Stock Exchange
on 12. January 2005. The gross proceeds of the Offer through a senes of mtra-group arrangements have been mvested by IAG

.....

IAG’s obhgatlons to the RES holders are secured by the Portfoho and mterest ‘payments and. redempnon amounts will depend on the
performance and creditworthiness of this Portfolio. IAG may, at any time, exercise its right to exchange some or all RES for preference
shares issued by IAG.

The issue of RES is expected to have a net positive, though immaterial impact, on IAG’s financial performance as the increase in
investment income generated by the Portfolio will be largely offset by the increase in interest expense from interest payments to RES
holders and the amortisation of capitalised transaction costs, RES and the Portfolio will be set-off in IAG’s statement of financial
position with a net asset being recorded to the extent that the Portfolro value is greater than the RES redemption amount.

(c) Mr Brian Schwartz was appointed a director of the Company on 1 January 2005.
(d) International Financial Reporting Standards -
(i) Overview

For reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the IAG Group must comply with Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“A-IFRS”) as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The IAG Group’s financial report
will be prepared in accordance with A-IFRS for the first time for the half year ending 31 December 2005 and the year ending 30 June
2006. A-IFRS requires the restatement of comparative financial statements of the IAG Grouip subject to optional restatement for certain
standards relevant to the IAG Group being AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentaiion, AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, AASB 4 Insurance Contracts, and AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts. A-IFRS
transition adjustments will be made retrospectively against opening accumulated losses at 1 July 2004 except where, as noted above, the
IAG Group elects not to restate comparatives for a particular standard in which case transitional adjustments for those standards will be
made at 1 July 2005.
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Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date (continued)

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
(1) Overview (continued) ‘ .

This financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian accounting standards and other financial reporting requirements
(“Australian GAAP”). The differences between Australian GAAP and A-TFRS identified to date as potentially having a significant effect
on the IAG Group’s financial performance and financial position are summarised bélow. The summary should not be taken as an
exhaustive list of all the differences between Australian GAAP and A-IFRS as there is still work to be completed. There will also be
significant changes in the presentation and content of financial reports prepared in accordance with A-IFRS.

The potential impacts on the IAG Group’s financial performance and financial position of the transition to A-IFRS, including system
upgrades and other implementation costs that may be incurred, have not all been quantified as at the transition date of 1 July 2004. The
impact on future years will depend on the particular circumstances prevailing in those years.

Any assessments made in respect of the transition to A-IFRS may require adjustment before inclusion in the first financial report
prepared in accordance with AIFRS due to new or revised standards or interpretations or addmonal guidance on the application of
AIFRS in a particular industry or to a particular transaction.

It is important to understand that while the A-IFRS accounting requirements will change the IAG Group s reported results, this does not
represent a change in the strength of the underlying busmess

(ii) Management of the IAG Group’s transition

The IAG Group has established a project team to manage the transition to the new standards, including training of staff and system and
internal control changes necessary to gather all the required financial information. The project team is chaired by the Chief Financial
Officer and reports quarterly to the audit committee. The projéct team has prepared a detailed timetable for managing the transition to
the new standards and is currently on schedule. To date the project team has analysed most of the new standards and has identified a
number of accounting policy changes that will be required. In some cases choices of accounting policies are available, including
elective exemptions under AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards.
Some of these choices are still being analysed to determine the: most appropriate accounting policy for the IAG Group.
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Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date (continued)

(iii) Key differences

The key implications of the conversion to A-IFRS on the IAG Group are as follows:

Insurance contracts

All of the insurance
products meet the new
accounting definition of
an “insurance contract”

The only significant
change to the
accounting treatments
for insurance contracts
is the expanded liability
adequacy test

In respect of the IAG Group’s core insurance business, the changes to accounting treatments on
conversion to A-IFRS are minimal. A-IFRS allows the IAG Group to basically continue with current
accounting treatments for those general insurance products and reinsurance products that meet the A-
IFRS definition of an “insurance contract”. The only significant change is the introduction of a new
liability adequacy test. o :
All of the IAG Group’s general insurance products and reinsurance products on offer, or utilised, meet
the definition of an insurance. contract. This means that the JAG Group’s accounting for premium
revenue, reinsurance expense, claims expense, acquisition costs, and reinsurance and other recoveries,
together with related balances in the statement of financial position, will continue without significant
change, subject to an expanded liability adequacy test.

The IAG Group is working with other general insurance companies and the Australian Accounting
Standards Board to resolve issues concerning the conduct of the expanded liability adequacy test as
currently published. The impact from this test, if any, is not capable of being determined until these
issues are resolved. Any deficiency arising, from the test will be recognised first through the write down
of any related intangible assets and then the related deferred acquisition costs, with any remaining balance
being recognised in the statement of financial position as an unexpired risk liability.

The IAG Group may elect to not restate comparatives for these changes as permitted under the
transitional provisions for ﬁrst time adoptron of A IFRS, and so the financial impact, if any, may apply
from 1 July 2005. -

Contributed equity

The reset preference
shares likely to be -
reclassified as
compound instrument

The measurement and treatment of the 1ssued an fully paid ordinary shares will remain unchanged.

The IAG Group’s reset preference sha.res are currently presented as equity under Australian GAAP as
they are not considered a mandatory convertrble instrument, are perpetual and there is no obhgatlon to
pay distributions. .

It was previously reported that the reset preference shares would be classified -as debt under A-IFRS.
However, as a result of developments in relation to the interpretation of the relevant accounting standard,
it is now understood that the reset preference shares will likely be classified as a compound instrument
that will consist of both a debt and equity component with associated dividend and interest expenses.
This matter is subject to final clarification.

The IAG Group may elect to not restate comparatives for these changes as permitted under the

transitional provisions for first time adoptron of A-IFRS, and so the financial impact of these changes
may be applied from 1 July 2005.

This change has a direct impact on the contributed capital of the IAG Group which is central to the
capital adequacy requirements set by APRA. APRA has stated it will.continue the current regulatory
capital treatment for existing instruments that are adversely affected by the accounting standard change
until further notice. If APRA’s approach changes, it has indicated it may ‘grandfather’ the treatment of
affected issued securities.

Accumulated losses

The accumulated losses
balance as at 30 June
2004 will change

In transitioning to A-IFRS the basic principle (with certain exceptions) is that the IAG Group must apply
the new standards as if the JAG Group had always applied them. There are therefore likely to be
retrospective adjustments that will affect the accumulated losses balance as at 1 July 2004.
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Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date (continued)

Investments

More choices around
accounting policies for
investments

Initial accounting
policy selection means
no immediate change

‘Under current accounting standards, the IAG Group is required to measure at net market value (fair value
less disposal costs) all investments integral to general insurance activities with movements in the net
market value recorded in the statement of financial performance. Under A-IFRS, the JAG Group will be
required to measure at fair value those financial assets held to back insurance liabilities. Those financial
assets that are not held to back insurance liabilities will move to a system of purpose led accounting. The
new standards require classification of the investments based on the purpose for which they are held. The
different classifications have different accounting treatments, being fair value through the statement of
financial performance, fair value through equity, and amortised cost. There is also an option to measure
any financial asset at fair value through the statement of financial performance regardless of the purpose
for which it is held. _

The IAG Group has elected to apply the fair value through statement of financial performance option
under its current investment strategy for shareholders’ funds and so all investments held will be measured
on the same basis. This will basically be a continuation of current practice with small adjustments for
disposal costs and a change in market price determination.

The IAG Group reserves the right to deem further asset acquisitions as held for another purpose and thus
be valued on one of the other available bases.

The TAG Group may elect to not restate comparatives for these changes as permitted under the
transitional provisions for first time adoption of A-IFRS, and so the investment portfolio may be revalued
to A-IFRS requirements from I July 2005.

Derivatives

All recorded in
statement of financial
position at fair value .

The IAG Group uses denvatlve financial instruments solely for hedging purposes. A-IFRS specifies that
hedge accounting can only be applled for fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, and hedges of investments
in foreign operatlons and only Wnere stringent rules are met. Hedge accounting basically provides for
the movement in fair value of the denvauve to follow the accounting for the underlying instrument.

All derivative contracts, regardlcss of the purpose for which they are used will be measured at fair value.

For the majority of derivatives, which relate to investments held for which the IAG Group has elected to
apply the fair value through statement of financial performance option, the movements in fair value will
be recorded in the statement of, ﬁna.nc1al performance..

For the small number of denvatxve contracts that will be desxgnated as hedges under A-IFRS, the
movements in fair value will be recorded on the same basis as the item being hedged.

Goodwill

No amortisation
resulting in lower
expenses, subject to
impairment charges
Goodwill supportable
at 1 July 2004

The IAG Group will not restate the accountmg for business combinations transacted prior to 1 July 2004,
as permitted under the transitional provisions for first time adoption of A-IFRS. There are also no
additional intangible assets to be recognised separately from goodwill upon first time adoption. Goodwill
will not be amortised under A-IFRS and so the carrying value of goodwill as at 1 July 2004 of $1,455
million will be carried forward under A-IFRS subject to impairment testing. Part of that goodwill balance
is denominated in New Zealand dollars and so the balance will continue to change reflecting foreign
currency movements.

The net goodwill as at 1 July 2004 has been systematically allocated to cash generating units for the
purpose of the recoverability test, which is to be conducted at each reporting date. Any impairment is to
be recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which it is identified. Using A-
IFRS impairment methodology the $1,455 million goodwill balance is supportable at 1 July 2004.

The elimination of the requirement to amortise goodwill under A-IFRS will increase reported profits,
subject to any impairment charge that may be required at a reporting date. The IAG Group had a
goodwill amortisation expense for the half year to 31 December 2004 of $46 million. That amount will
be removed from the statement of financial performance under A-IFRS and the 1 July 2004 goodwill
balance of $1,455 million will be reinstated, subject to impairment testing.

Non-goodwill
intangibles

All current non-
goodwill intangible
assets qualify for
recognition

Existing non-goodwill intangible assets on the IAG Group’s statement of financial position at 1 July 2004
and 31 December 2004 meet the recognition and measurement requirements of A-IFRS and so the
accounting treatment, including amortisation, will remain unchanged. They will be subject to impairment
testing.

In certain circumstances under A-IFRS, development phase expenditure will be capitalised and so
recognised as an internally generated intangible asset. Software development is the only significant
development expenditure for the IAG Group. The IAG Group is not currently carrying any capitalised
software development costs in the statement of financial position but is likely to recognise such an asset
under the more prescriptive A-IFRS requirements.
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Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date (continued)

Employee benefits

Superannuation

surplus

Positive impact to

retained earnings at 1
" July 2004

Initial change involves
recognition of new
asset

Share-based
payments

Overall expense likely
to be reduced :
Equity remuneration .
trust to be consolidated -

The accounting for all employee benefits will remain unchanged except for defined benefit
superannuation arrangements and share based payments. '

In December 2004 the Australian Accounting Standards Board released a revised version of AASB 119
Employee Benefits. The revised standard provides three options to account for actuarial gains and losses
associated with defined benefit superannuation plans. These. options are the ‘immediate recognition’
option in which the surplus as a whole is recognised in the statement of financial position with
movements recognised in the statement of financial performance, the ‘corridor’ option which provides for
only a portion of actuarial gains and losses to be recognised for a period, and the ‘direct to retained
earnings’ option. The IAG Group has not yet selected its accounting policy in response to these changes.

The relevant net position of defined benefit superannuation plans are currently not recognised in the IAG
Group’s results though some information is disclosed in the notes to the annual financial report. The
defined benefit superannuation plans are currently in surplus. It is important to note that the net position
calculated under A-IFRS is different to that calculated in accordance with current accounting standards
because of different measurement requirements with the principal difference being the discount rate
applied. :

Fewer than 10% of employees of the IAG Group part1c1pate in defined benefit superannuation
arrangements.

The only transactions within the IAG Group that qualify as share-based payments are share-based
remuneration payments. The IAG Group provides share-based remuneration through four different plans
each of which have different purposes and different rules. The IAG Group will not retrospectively apply
the A-IFRS expense treatment to. the Performance Share Rights Plan or the Employee Share Plan, as

‘permitted under the transitional prov131ons for first time adoption of A-IFRS, because the last rights

provided under those plans were granted pnor ‘to 7 November 2002. The A-IFRS transition changes will
therefore impact on only the Performance Award nghts Plan ( ‘PAR Plan”), and Non-Executive Director
Share Plan (“NED Plan™). ' '

The IAG Group § current practice is {o” aequlre TAG shares on market and hold them in trust to satisfy a
future obhgatlon for share-based remunerauon The shares are purchased on or near grant date at the

......

which the employees prov1de related services:.

Under A-IFRS the fair value at grant date of 'share-based remuneration is required to be recognised as an
expense over the penod from grant date until: the equity instruriénts vest fully to the employee. The
charge is matched by an increase in an equity reserve. At each reporting date the total accumulated
expense will be adjusted through the statement of financial performance based on the latest estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will vest, considering only employee turnover, and taking into

- account the expired portion of the vesting period.

The vesting conditions for- the two plans ‘are different with only the PAR Plan incorporating a market
based vesting condition. If equity instruments in either of the plans do not vest because the participant
ceases to be employed by the IAG Group thén. the expense charged in relation to that participant will be
reversed. If equity instruments in the PAR Plan do.not vest only because the market condition is not met,
then the expense will not be reversed. .

The A-IFRS requirement to expense the faxr value of the equity instruments graated can be different to
the fair value (on-market purchase price) of acquiring the relevant number of shares to support the
arrangements. For the PAR Plan, the fair value of the rights granted is lower than the market value of the
shares purchased on or near grant date because of the variables and uncertainty that influence whether the
participant will ever receive the share and what the value of the share will be at that time. For the NED
Plan, the on-market share price at grant'date'may be used as a proxy for the fair value of the equity
instrument granted because the shares are provided fully vested on a monthly basis and the participant is
entitled to dividends and other shareholder rights during the vesting period.

The requirement to determine the fair value of the share-based remuneration and recognise this expense
over the period from grant date to vesting date will likely result in a reduction in the overall expense
recognised for the IAG Group in relation to share-based payments.

Under A-IFRS the equity remuneration trust used to manage the share-based arrangements will be
consolidated by the IAG Group. The impact of this will be that the shares purchased by the equity
remuneratioe tmst will likely be treated as negative equity.
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Note 13. Events subsequent to reporting date (contmued)

Property, plant and
equipment

All property classified
as owner occupied and

depreciated over useful
life

Plant and equipment to
continue to be
measured at cost

Under current accounting treatments, all property, regardless of the purpose for which it is used, must be
designated as an investment integral to general insurance activities and so is measured at fair value. This
designation will not continue under A-IFRS and property will be classified according to the purpose for
which it is held. All of the property within the IAG Group will be classified as owner occupied property
under A-IFRS.

The IAG Group has elected to apply the cost approach under which the property will be depreciated over
its useful life and also be subject to impairment testing. The IAG Group has elected to apply the optional
exemption permitted under the transitional provisions for first time adoption of A-IFRS to use the fair
value of the property held as at 30 June 2004 as the deemed cost of that property moving forward.

The IAG Group has elected to apply the cost approach under which plant and equipment will be
depreciated over its useful life and also be subject to impairment testing. The IAG Group has elected to
not apply the optional exemption permitted under the transitional provisions for first time adoption of A-
IFRS to use the fair value of the plant and equipment as at 30 June 2004 as the deemed cost and so will
continue to depreciate the original cost.

Taxation

More deferred tax
assets and liabilities
may be recognised

Income tax will be calculated based on the “balance sheet approach” replacing the “income statement
approach” currently used. The A-IFRS treatment focuses on the closing balances rather than the
movements for the period. This method recognises deferred tax balances when there is a difference
between the carrying value of an asset or lability, and its tax base (being the amount attributed to an asset
or liability for tax purposes) rather than for differences between accounting and taxable profit. Deferred
tax assets under A-IFRS will be recognised based on a ‘probable’ criterion rather than the ‘beyond
reasonable doubt’ criteria, or ‘virtually certain’ criteria for unused tax losses, under Australian GAAP.
This may result in more deferred tax assets and liabilities and, as tax effects follow the underlying
transaction, some tax effects will be recognised in equity.

The net impact (directional or value) at transition and in the future is not capable of being determined
until all other A-IFRS adjustinents are finalised. The IAG Group has recently implemented and tested
new tax software that is IFRS capable.

Consolidation
Consolidated financial
reporting to be
simplified

Other than the equity remuneration trust (refer above) there are no other entities in the IAG Group that
are currently not consolidated that will be consolidated under A-IFRS.

IAG has operations in five countries. Three of the countries, Australia, New Zealand and Ireland, require
or permit transitioning to IFRS equivalent standards from 1 January 2005 for local reporting purposes.
The IAG Group controlled entities operating in those countries will apply the relevant standards in line
with the IAG Group. This will simplify the IAG Group’s consolidated financial reporting. The other two
countries, being China and Thailand, are not currently transitioning to IFRS for local reporting purposes.

First time adoption -
optional exemptions

Upon transition to A-IFRS the general principle is that the financial reports must be prepared as if the
new standards had always been applied. There are however eleven optional exemptions that may be
applied upon first time adoption. The IAG Group may elect to apply some, all or none of the options.
Only eight of the options are relevant to the IAG Group and we list these below together with the
proposed treatment.

Business combinations — The IAG Group has elected to not restate the accounting for business
combinations transacted prior to 1 July 2004, '

Share-based payments - The IAG Group will not retrospectively apply the A-IFRS expense treatment to
share-based payments granted prior to 7 November 2002.

Property, plant and equipment — The IAG Group will use the fair value of the property as at 30 June
2004 as the deemed cost of that property moving forward but will continue with original cost for plant
and equipment.

Foreign currency translatwn reserve — The IAG Group will not reset the foreign currency translation
reserve to zero.

Financial instruments options — There are two options relevant to the A-IFRS conversion of the IAG
Group’s accounting for financial instruments. The IAG Group will use these options in line with the
election to apply the fair value through statement of financial performance option for shareholders’ funds
and the election whether to restate comparatives for the financial instruments standards.

Insurance contracts — The IAG Group’s application of this option for insurance contract disclosures is
dependent in part on whether the IAG Group elects to not restate comparatives for AASB 1023 General
Insurance Contracts, as permitted under the transitional provisions for first time adoption of A-IFRS. '

Employee benefits — The IAG Group has not yet selected its accounting policy in response to the revised
employee benefits standard which provides three options to account for actuarial gains and losses
associated with defined benefit plans.
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" DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of Insurance Australia Group Limited:

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 4 to 19, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the IAG Group as at 31 December 2004 and of its performance, as
represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the half year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standard AASB 1029: Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regﬁlations 2001;
and

-(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed at Sydney this 24th day of February 2005 in accbrda’ncg w1th a rqqolutxon of the Directors.

. Director




Independent Auditors % Review Report to the shareholders of Insurance Australia Group Limited
Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of ﬁnancxal performance statement of cash flows,
accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for the Insurance Australia Group Limited Consolidated
Entity (“the Consolidated Entity”), for the half year ended 31 December 2004. The Consolidated Entity comprises Insurance Australia
Group Limited (“the Company”) and the entities it controlled during that half year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that
are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accountmg pohcws and accountmg estimates inherent in the financial
report.

Review approach

We conducted an independent review in order for the Company to lodge the financial report with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission.  Our review was conducted in’ accordance with Australian Auditing Standards applicable to review
engagements. - :

We performed procedures in order to state whether on the basis of the procedures described anything has come to our attention that
would indicate the financial report does not present fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 1029 “Interim Financial Reporting” and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is
consistent with our understanding of the Consohdated Entlty ] ﬁnancml posmon and of its performance as represented by the results of
its operations and cash flows. . . .. - o pwoed

We formed our statement onithe basis of the review procédures ﬁerfonned, which were limited primarily to:
¢ enquiries of company personnel; and ’ '
e analytical procedures applied to the financial data. - Sl

While we considered the effectiveness of management s mtemal controls over ﬁnanc1a1 reporting when determining the nature and
extent of our procedures, our review was not designed to prov1de assurance on internal controls.

The procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be requ1red in an audlt, thus the level of assurance is less than given in an
audit. We have not performed an audﬁ and, accordmgly, we do not express an audit opinion.

A review cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

Independence

In conducting our review, we followed applicable mdependence requlrements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the
Corporations Act 2001.

Statement

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us beheve that the half year financial
report of Insurance Australia Group Limited is not in accordance with:

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Consohdated Enuty ] ﬁna.nc1al position as at 31 December 2004 and of its performance
for the half year ended on that date; and :

(ii) complying with Australian Accountmg Standard AASB 1029 “Intenm Fmanclal Reportmg” and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and : :

(b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.
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IAG lifts profit and dividend on back of 388 George Street |
organic growth and buoyant equity markets f:g“:z;’:jwz‘)“ Australia

Insurance Australia Group Limited (IAG) today announced a net profit after tax of
$446 million for the six months ended 31 December 2004 (31 December 2003: $302
million), reflecting a continued strong performance in all business areas, ongoing
synergy benefits and record levels of investment income.

IAG Chief Executive Officer, Mr Michael Hawker said the Group’s momentum across all business
areas, coupled with robust trading conditions, had contributed to its continued solid performance.

“Our underlying business continued to perform strongly with risks in force (or sales) increasing on the
back of high renewal rates and new policies. As a result, revenue increased by:6.8% compared to the
previous corresponding period,” Mr Hawker said.

“At the same time, we continue to be more efficient. CGU and NZI are now fully integrated into the
Group and the synergies promised at the time of the acquisition are flowing through to the bottom
line. This is the first period where we’ve had a full contnbutlon from these synergies without
incurring any integration costs, Wthh added 2. 6% to the 1nsurance margm

“Customer satisfaction and retention in our core business are at all time highs as the measures
we’ve introduced to enhance customer service, improve underwriting disciplines and refine claims
management practices take effect.

“This has enabled us to improve margins across all our businesses, and achieve a Group insurance
margin of 16.7%, up from 11.8% in the previous corresponding period.

“Our result was also boosted by revenue generated from investment income including a
pre-tax return on shareholders’ funds of $287 million. That’s a record return since listing, and a 41%
increase from the $204 million recorded on this portfolio in the previous corresponding period.

“These factors combined to bring our net profit after tax to $446 million, up from $302 million in the
previous corresponding period.” -

Mr Hawker said he was pleased the Group was able to improve margins and grow earnings in an
environment where premium movements were moderate, and premiums decreased in some classes.

“By leveraging our scale and diversifying our general insurance portfolio, we’ve been able to produce
solid returns for shareholders while keeping premiums affordable for customers,” Mr Hawker said.

“NSW CTP prices are now as low as they were 10 years ago, comprehensive motor insurance
premiums are reducing relative to average weekly earnings and we introduced a 10% cut in
commercial public and product liability rates.”
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In light of the Group’s strong performance, the Board has deélafed' an interim dii/idend of 12 cents per
share, fully franked, representing a 50% increase from last year’s interim dividend of 8 cents per share.

Mr Hawker said the Group’s largest business, Australian personal insurance, achieved 5.4% revenue
growth, boosted by integration synergy benefits, favourable claims frequency trends and continued
stability in the CTP portfolio.

“QOur personal lines business has real momentum, with customer retention and satisfaction levels over
90% and risks in force (sales) increasing,” Mr Hawker said.

“The Group’s Australian commercial business also performed strongly, recording 6.1% revenue growth
from the previous corresponding period, while the international business benefited from favourable
underwriting conditions in New Zealand, an appreciation of the New Zealand dollar and the absence of
major catastrophes.”

Other elements of the interim result compared with the previous corresponding period include:

e Revenue increased 6.8% from $2,912 million to $3,109 million;

e Underwriting profit of $255 million compared with $277 million which, despite the apparent decline,
is actually an underlying improvement when the impact of discount rate changes on outstanding
claims is taken into consideration. Discount rate changes reduced the current period’s underwriting
result by $65 million but added $98 million in the previous corresponding period;

¢ Combined operating ratio of 91.8% compared with 90.5%. When taking into consideration the effects
of discount rate changes, the immunised combined ratio improved from 93.8% to 89.7%; and

e Insurance profit increased 51% from $344 million to $518 million.

The Group continues to maintain a very strong financial position with a minimum capital requirement
(MCR) multiple of 1.85 times as at 31 December 2004, above the Group’s current benchmark multiple of
1.55 times. The Group’s very strong ‘AA’ insurer financial strength ratings for all of its key wholly-
owned operating insurance entities remains unchanged, currently the highest of any Australian-based
financial institution. '

Mr Hawker said he expected the Group’s solid performance to continue in the second half, barring any
further major losses beyond the allowances in the Group’s budgets.

“The momentum in the business, and robust economic conditions, are expected to continue during the
remainder of the financial year. As a result, the Group expects to deliver an insurance margin of at least
15%, and revenue growth of 5-7%, for the full year.

“For the longer term, our guidance for an insurance margin of 9-12% remains unchanged, reflecting our
belief that an insurance company’s performance nieeds to be viewed over the long term, given the
influence of cyclical factors, such as underwriting conditions, weather patterns and investment returns.

“Our strategy to build a foothold in Asia remains unchanged. However, in keeping with our preference
for active capital management, if available investment opportunities do not meet our criteria, we may
return surplus capital to shareholders.

“Looking ahead, our aim remains to deliver a normalised return on equity at a minimum of 1.5 times our
weighted average cost of capital, without increasing the Group’s risk profile,” Mr Hawker said.

- ends -
Media Relations Investor Relations
Name Carolyn McCann Name Anne O’Driscoll
Telephone 02 9292 9557 Telephone 02 9292 3169
Mobile 0411014 126 Mobile 0411012 675
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED
ABN 60 090 739 923
Directory

Stock Exchange Listings

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ASX code for ordinary shares: IAG

ASX codes for reset preference shares: IAGPA (Listed June 2002) and IAGPB (Listed June 2003)
ASX code for Reset Exchangeable Securities: IANG (Llsted January 2005) ‘

Investor Information/A dmlmstrat:on
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford VIC 3067
Or by mail to

GPO Box 4709

Melbourne VIC 3001

Telephone: 1300 360 688

Email: iag@computershare.com. au
Facsimile: = (03) 94732470 -
Website: www lag com. ay -

Investor Relations L - ol
Email: investor. relatlons@tag com.au . o« i

Ms Arine O'Driscoll o e
Group Company Secretary & Head of Investor Relations *
Telephone: (02) 9292 3169

- Facsimile: - (02) 9292 3109 So sl vneas oo g
Email: .- .- anne. odrrscoll@rag com.aus

Registered ¢ Ofi‘ce e
Insurance Australia Group Limited
Level 26, 388 George Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Telephone: (02) 92929222 ~ - - SRR TR

Key dates for shareholders - -ﬁrépoeeld‘ -

Interim dividend — ordinary shares. - o S
- Ex-dividend date R R 10 March 2005

- Record date . 16-March 2005

.- Payment date ‘ o .18 April 2005
Half-yearly reset preference shares leldends due .. 15June 2005
Announcement of annual results to 30 June 2005 .- o - 19 August 2005
Final dividend - ordinary shares

- Ex-dividend date -~ 8September 2005
-Record date T 14 September 2005
- Payment date " 17 October 2005
Annual General Meeting .. . . . ¢ .. - 9November 2005
Half-yearly reset preference shares leldends due_. . N 15 December 2005

Announcement of half year results - 31 December 2005 23 February 2006
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Introduction

»  The Group net profit after tax for the half-year ended 31 December 2004 of $446m
represents a 47.7% increase on the prior comparative period and 45.8% on 2H04
(excluding the post-tax profit on the sale of ClearView of $57m). The continued strong
performance was driven by:

Benefits realised from the CGU/NZI acquisition following the completion of the

. integration programme in 2H04. . The quantum of recurring synergies delivered

reached the target of $160m pa (pre-tax) in 1HO5;

All segments of the Group’s business contributed to the increase in insurance
margin to 16.7% in 1HO5, compared to 11.8% in 1H04 and 15.2% in 2H04; and

Returns on shareholders’ funds rose significantly to $287m (pre-tax) on the back
of the continued increase in equity market indices during the second half of
calendar 2004, an increase of 40.7% on the prior comparative period and 24.8%
on 2H04.

> Following the strong result, the Group has increased its interim dividend from the prior
comparative period by 50. 0% to 12.0 cents.

> The outlook for the Groups organic business will be influenced by the following
factors:

Continuing growth in business volumes, assisted by robust economic conditions
in Australia and New Zealand and the Group’s continued momentum in improving
customer satisfaction;

An increasing focus on segmentation in marketing and product design;
Further cost initiatives to streamline processes across the business to ensure the

operating costs reflect the advantages available from the Groups scale in
-Australia and New Zealand. :

Moderate increases or decreases in premium rates based on trends in claims

frequency and costs. The experience varies by line of business and, in some
instances, regions;

An ability to maintain positive momentum in annual normalised earnings and
dividends per share. The Group’s ability to do this was recently enhanced by the
issue of contingent capital and retaining the Group’s catastrophe deductible at
$100m even though the business has grown.

| Maintaining a conservative risk appetite within ongoing capital management and
- the Group’s comprehensive reinsurance programme; and

Continuing to pursue opportunities for offshore investment in general insfurance to
supplement the growth and eamings profile of the business in the medium term.

» : Taking into account the external market factors and internal momentum, tﬁe Group
now expects the FY05 insurance margin to be at least 15.0%, subject to no further
major losses. The outlook for FY05 NEP of 5 — 7% growth is unchanged.
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Half Year Results

Insurance Australia Group Half-year Half-year
Financial Performance . ended ended

Dec-03

Gross written premium
Gross earned premium
Reinsurance expense
Net premium revenue
Net claims expense
Commission expense
Underwriting expense
Underwriting profit
Investment income on technical reserves
Insurance profit

Financial services

Net corporate expenses

Amortisation

Interest

Profit from fee based businesses
Investment income on shareholders' funds
Investment income on external funds
NSW Insurance Protection tax o
Non-recurring items (sale of ClearView) =~~~
Profit before income tax o
Income tax expense

Profit after income tax

Qutside equity interests .
Profit attributable to shareholders
Dividends paid to reset preference shares :

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Financia! Results/Ratios i H

GWP (A$m)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (A$m)
Reported ROE % (Average Equity) to ordinary '
shareholders pa
Normalised ROE % (Average Equnty) to ordmary
shareholders pa
Net cash flow from operations (A$m)
Basic EPS (cents)
Diluted EPS (cents)
DPS
Group insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Administration expense
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)
Minimum probability of sufficiency of
general insurance claims reserves
MCR multiple - Australian licensed entities
MCR multiple - Group
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A. Key Elements of Results

>

The Group delivered a net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of
$431m, representing an increase of 49.7% on the prior comparative period (1H04) and
23.5% on 2HO04, or 47.6% excluding the post-tax profit from sale of ClearView
business of $57m in 2H04.

The Group achieved organic growth in gross written premium (GWP) in 1HO5 of 5.9%
to $3,328m relative to 1HO4, and 1.3% compared to 2HO04. The lower growth
compared to 2HO04 includes the effect of the seasonality within the Commercial
business (representing around 25% of the Group’s GWP) where renewals are skewed
to the second half of the financial year.

Net eamned premium (NEP) grew by 6.8% on 1H04 and 5.4% on 2HO4. This level of
growth is consistent with the Group’s guidance of 5 — 7% for FY05. Growth in NEP
was exhibited in all business units within the Group:

+ Australian personal lines business grew by 5.4% on 1H04 and 3.4% on 2HO04;

e Australian commercial business grew by 9.8% on 2H04 and 6.1% compared to
1HO4; and

e The reported growth of° the international business includes benefits from
exchange rate movements in the New Zealand -business.: NEP in the New
Zealand business grew by 10.5% (4.7% in NZD) on 1HO4 and 6.9% (1.3% in
NZD) on 2H04 .

Whilst the decrease in bond ylelds during 1HO5 had a posmve lmpact on investment
income on technical reserves returns, this effect was immunised by the negative
impact on claims reserves of $65m or 2.1% on the combined ratio. Excluding the
impact of these interest rate adjustments, which in 2H04 had a positive impact of
$25m (or 0.8%) and in 1H04 of $98m (or 3.3%), the combined ratio for 1HO5 of 89.7%
reflects an underlying improvement in.the Group’s underwriting business over the past
two half-year periods.

The improvement in the combined ratlo was Iargely driven by the loss ratio, which
benefited from:

o Synergies derived from the |ntegrat|on of CGU/NZI m claims management and
processes; and : :

» Reserve releases from key long-tail portfohos asa result of contlnued stabuhty in
the NSW CTP scheme and to reflect better than anticipated.loss experience in the
current liability business. These beneficial adjustments were partly ‘offset by
reserve increases for workers’ compensation and product habmty claims, largely
in respect of prior periods. _

In assessing the trends in the admmlstratlon ratlo between the haIf-year perlods it
should be noted that:

. The admlmstratlon ratlo ‘of 18.5% in 2HO04 mcluded a number of one-off

investments in the Group’s technology transformation *programme ‘aimed at
improving data and systems in the LndenNntlng business, which “added
approximately 1% to the administration ratio. Excludsng this, the underlylng
administration ratio was 17.5%.

¢ The administration ratio of 17.1% in 1H04, included a one-off benefit from release
of fire service levy provisions equivalent to 0.4% on the administration ratio.
Excluding this the underlying administration ratio was 17.5%.
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Considering the above, the administration ratio of 17.2% for 1HO5 is largely in-line with
prior periods. Excluding the fire service levy component of the administration ratio, the
underlymg expense ratio for the period was 14.8% compared with 15. 5% in 1HO4 and
'15.7% in 2HO04.

The strong momentum of the business following the integration of CGU/NZI business
continues to produce improvements in the insurance margin. The 1HO5 margin of
16.7% includes a full six months of the $160m annual recurring synergy benefits,
compared to $8m and $10m of net benefits in 1H04 and 2H04, respectively.

The Australian personal lines business continues to be the largest contributor to the
Group’s insurance result with an insurance margin of 18.1% in 1H05. The sustained
improvement in the personal lines business continues to be supported by the Group’s
focus on customer service to support ongoing high retention rates and continuous
improvement in, and utilisation of, its claim management models to drive competitive
supply chain costs. :

The Australian commercial lines margin was 11.4% compared to 9.6% in both 1H04
and 2H04. This reflected good operating -conditions and limited impact to date of
market rate reductions on earned .income. The improvement in margins for this
business was achieved even after absorbmg a net reserve increase of $37m.

The. international business produced, a sugmf icant improvement in margins, with no
major losses in 1HO5. ' The msurance margln in 1HO5 of 19.0% was a substantial
improvement on 3.0% in 1H04 and 11 8% |n 2H04. ’ ‘

The equity market performance in 1H05 underpmned the investment returns on
- shareholders’. funds of $287m, representm_g a.23.4% annuahsed return and the highest
returns achieved by the Group smoe I|st|ng :

The fee-based businéss: result of $10m"is ot comparable ona half-year basis due to
the timing of some payments withinthis!business. The major component of fee-based
business is the management of 'thé’ hon-risk -workers’ compensation schemes
(underwritten by various State governments) where the timing of the assessment and
notification of performance fees drives volatility in the results between the halves.
Performance fees.received during. 1HOS were less than the prior year.

Prior to 1HOS5, the results from the China Automobile Association (CAA) business were
negligible and were recognised within investment returns. Given the Group’s intention
to expand this business, the Group will now include the results from its CAA business
on the Group's profit and loss. The 1HO5 loss of $2m reflects the Group’s investment
in expanding thls busuness and was in accordance with expectatlons

The effective tax rate for 1H05 of 30 3% compares with 28:1% in 1H04 and 31.4% in
2H04. The varylng tax ratés between. the half-years resulted from a number of one-off
impacts in the prior two halves including: :

o Favourable adjustment of $22m arising from adoption of tax consolidation in
1H04, of which $9m was reversed in 2H04 following further review;

» Unfavourable prior year adjustments in 2H04 of $17m to tax provisions and
deferred tax assets relating to legacy issues in CGU; and

On a cash basis; i.e. excluding. amortisation and one-off impacts, the tax rate is
28.3%’in 1HO5, and compares with 25.2% in 2H04 and 28.4% in 1H04.
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B. Group Insurance Ratios

Expense ratio Loss ratio

28.0% 1
26.0% A
24.0% A
22.0%
20.0%
18.0% A
16.0%
14.0% A
. 12.0% A
10.0% +

_ FYO1 FY02 FY03
w Administration ratio =FSL impact

Combined ratio Insurance margin {before tax)
18.0% 1

105.0% - '16.0% 1

14.0% A
12.0% A

100.0% A

Long4erm expectation 3-12%

85.0% 4 10.0%
8.0% 4
6.0% 4

A o | B

85.0% 4.0%

2.0% A

80.0% J 0.0% -

FY01 FY02 FY03 FYo4 1HOS

*Notes:
Commission ratio negligible in prior periods o
Commission ratio includes commissions paid to RACV, previously treated as a direct underwriting expense.

»  While part of the positive momentum in the insurance margin can be attributed to
favourable industry conditions, the Group is confident that the sustained improvement
is in large part evidence of the Group’s ability to execute its initiatives and make
structural changes to its business to deliver sustainable results period on period.

»  To compare the underlying performance of the underwriting business, it is necessary
to immunise the combined ratio (COR) for the discount adjustments in the loss ratio.
In 1HO5 the underwriting profit was reduced by $65m in adverse discount rate
adjustments, equating to a 2.1% increase in the combined ratio. This compares to a
benefit of $98m in 1H04 and $25m in 2H04. Excluding the discount rate adjustments,
the combined ratio has improved over both prior periods to 89.7%.

»  The table below shows discount rate adjustments over the past three years and the
immunised combined ratio is more comparable.

Reported Discount rate effect Immunised

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 923 8



The underlying loss ratio (ie, excluding discount rate adjustments) of 64.4% is an
improvement on the equivalent ratio in 1H04 of 68.9% and 2H(04 of 65.4%. Given the
claims experience has been relatively consistent between 1H05 and 1HO04, the
improvement can be attributed to the Group’s core capability in managing its claims
costs through its supply chain models and the benefits from the integration of
CGU/NZL.

The commission ratio has increased during the period to 8.1% from 7.7%, mainly due
to a combination of:

¢ Higher profit commissions and some higher commission business in New
Zealand;

¢ Lower commissions receivable for business ceded; and
¢ Alarger proportion of commercial business with higher commissions.

Excluding the fire services levy expense from both premium and expenses would
reduce the administration ratio by 2.4% from 17.2% to 14.8% for 1H05. On the same
basis, the underlying ratios were 15.5% in 1H04 and 15.7% in 2H04. The Group
intends to continue its focus on keeping this ratio at industry leading levels for its mix
of business.

The 1HOS insurance result includes a full six- months of recurring synergy benefits. At
$160m pa, this equates to 2.6% on the insurance margin.: This compares with a net
- benefit of $8m (0.3% on COR) in 1H04 ($33m benef t offset by integration expenses of
$25m) and $10m (0.3% on COR) in 2HO4 ($37m benefit offset by integration expenses
of $27m).

The insurance margin of 16.7% marks the second consecutive period in which the
Group has meaningfully exceeded its long-term insurance margin expectation of 9-
12% over a full cycle. The average.of the half-yearly margins since listing is 11.4%.

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 923 9



C. Resuilts by Business Area

lnsurance
Australia Group

General Insurance Corporate & Investments

' -

T AL IR ' Corp’ Half-year Half-yea
PteLr.sopaI Conercual International & . ended
_ P WES, o NSt e e vt - Dec 04
‘ e e - SO A S ASm o Asin .
Gross written premium

Insurance Australia Group Limited

Gross earmned premium ‘ 1,986 831 . 494
Reinsurance (106) ~(100) 4
Net premium revenue 1,880 731 498
Net claims expense (1.262) (518) (287)
Commission expense (114) (80) (49)
Underwriting expense (322) (132) (80)
Underwriting profit 182 (9) 82
Investment income on technical reserves 158 93 12
Insurance profit 340 84 94

Financial services

Net corporate expenses

Amortisation

interest .

Profit from fee based businesses 1" 2
Investment income on intemal funds ~ '

Investment income on external funds

NSW Insurance Protection Tax

Profit before income tax 340 95 92
Income tax expense : '
Profit after income tax L 340 95 ‘ 92

OE!: External funds

OE!: IMA & MCGI

Profit attributable to shareholders
Dividends on reset preference shares

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Basic earnings per share (cents)
Diluted earnings per share (cents)
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Australian Personal Lines

Half-year Half-year Half-yea
Australian Personal Lines ended ended ended

Dec-03

A g T e e e e et

Gross written premium
Gross earned premium
Reinsurance expense
Net premium revenue
Net claims expense
Commission expense
Underwriting expense
Underwriting profit
Investment income on technical reserves
Insurance profit
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Administration ratio
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
insurance margin (before tax)

(1,152)
(108
(339

> The Group's Australian Personal Lines: busmess underwrites retail insurance for
individuals. These products are sold directly to customers through branches, the
internet and call centres, as well as through intermediary partners (insurance brokers
and agents) and busmess partners (ﬂnanCIal institutions).

> The Australlan personal Ilnes busi e .4cont|nues to represent the largest component
of the Group’s business, comprising of 60% of Group GWP. [t generated 65.6% of the
Group's pre-tax insurance profit.in 1HOS.

»  With growth in premlum rates moderating as savings in c!alms are passed to
consumers, the strong margins delivered in this period reflect ongoing positive
momentum in the business, including benefits from the integration of the CGU
personal lines business, favourable frequency trends and continued stability in the
Compulsory Third Party (CTP) motor liability portfolio.

A. Operational Results

» This segment continues to produce strong margins despite some premium rate
decreases. This reflects the disciplined approach to management of costs and the
ability to leverage scale to generate efficiencies.

»  GWP growth during the last 12 months was 4.3%.

> In volume terms, risks in-force growth for the personal lines busnness in 1HO05 was
2.6% compared to' 1H04.

»  The core capability in managing personal lines risk from the risk-selection to claims
management has been the key driver in delivering ongoing strong margins in this
business.
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B.

The loss ratio of 1HO5 of 67.1% includes a negative discount rate adjustment of 1.5%,
whilst the two previous periods had benefits from discount rate movements, including
2.9% in 1HO4. Excluding this, the loss ratio in 1HO5 shows improvement from the
same period last year reflecting lower claims frequency and the effect of key claims

initiatives that have been implemented throughout this period.

From a claims management perspectrve the concept of partnenng with key suppliers
to deliver quality service to policyholders through efficient and cost-effective claims
management began in November 2001 with the Preferred Smash Repair model
(PSR). The success of this initiative has evolved and been further enhanced through
the ‘introduction of web-based capability to virtually manage claims processes
nationally and across the key short-tail personal lines products.

The success of the supply chain model within the motor class has more recently been
applied to home insurance. This was implemented in 2003 and following integration
has been operational in the CGU business for almost a year. This has delivered
substantial savings in the average cost per claim for similar damage.

The weather during 1HO5 indicated a return to more normal weather patterns. For
example, 66 rain days were recorded in Sydney, compared with 58 days in 1H04
(historical average 136 days per calendar year). There were also a number of major
storms in 1HO5 with an aggregate cost of approximately $90m; mainly affecting the
home portfolio. Thls is similar to the experience in 1H04, but considerably more than
2H04, S

The administration ratio‘for 1H05 ,was 17.‘,1%. 1H05 and ,1H04vboth benefited from a
fire service levy adjustment of 0.3% and 0.7% respectively. After taking this into
account the 1H05 administration ratio is in line with 1HQ04. ‘

* With the national personal lines business is ‘operating as one, including the CGU

portfolios, the business has begun a review. to ensure that the operations are
optimised and to further improve customer service. Utilising the skills and experience
of the people in-the business, process. improvements are: ‘being identified. These
range from choosing 'best of breed' where disparate processes operate for similar
activities arcund the business and designing improved processes where inefficiencies
are identified. Implementation of these changes W|II assist in’ sustaining strong

" margins in this business."

Short-tail Personal Lines B

B.1 Premiums and Market Share

>

GWP growth in the. short-tall personal lines business durlng the Iast 12 months has

. been achieved ina market which is very competltlve Insurers are targetlng segments

perceived as attractlve and pricing keenly in these.

This business continues to sustain excellent retentlon wuth renewal rates of over 90%
in the key direct portfolios.

The national market share for the short- tarl personal lines portfolios is broadly in line
with previous periods, Seuree: Rey Mergan .

New business volumes have been steady during the penod The growth in the home
portfolio has been well in excess of system growth (as measured by CPl and AWE
growth). Average premiums for home insurance rose, in single digits, due to the
increased frequency and severity of claims, moderated by sharing of the savings
achieved in claims costs.
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Note: On average, 61% of the average weekly eam/ngsvoo
was 58%.

B 2 Customer focus

»

Premium/AWE

Mhnaaﬂtoni\zvtmem cross mvbemleuxmd
overtime. Only full-time adult emptoyee jobs.

To accelerate new business growth, a number of new initiatives have been developed
to leverage -market share and the extensive customer database to target specific

"~ market and customer segments. In particular Home@50 was taunched in 2H04 and

performed well in 1HOS.

Average premiums in motor continue to rise at less than inflation as savings achieved
are shared with customers. The graph below tracks affordability of motor premiums
compared to average weekly earnings since December 1998.

" Affordability of NRMA Car Insurance (NSW)

{Annual Average Premium / Average Weekly Eamings)

80% 1
75%

70%

65%
- Average 61%

60% 1

55% 1

50% : - pir .
;p mmpwmwdb'brbfbsa
v&vﬁ 9 Qé (?\9 ép 09@95*’9&’0&90&’%& vgps ‘99 égé'p @:é 509\9, &

{

the average 12-month .insurance policy. At October 2004 it

‘The two fundamentals that need to be addressed to ach!eve growth in the personal

lines market are product and customer service dlfferentlatlon initiatives implemented
during 1HOS5 include:

e Rolling out of several enhancements to operating models. in the telephone
business networks and branches to simplify processes for customers.

e New motor policy booklets launched in September 2004 delivered nationally -
consistent (previously there were some state differences) policy terms and
conditions that are at least equal to, or (in most cases) exceed, the cover
provided by competitors. This follows the launch of the new home policy booklet

~ in 2HO4. o :

e As part of differentiating its products, Australian Personal Lines focuses on
providing more flexibility in policy options to recognise the varying needs of its
customers. Examples of this include the introduction of two new policy options:

~  Windscreen Cover (customers can elect to pay an additional premium
which allows them to clalm for replacement windscreens without paying
an excess)
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>

—~ Choice of Repairer Motor Policy - The introduction of this option was
partially influenced by the 2003 issues paper on the relationship between
insurers and smash repairers reported by the Australian Competition and
Consumer Commission where “repairer groups have called for
consideration of a two tier pricing system. This price system will offer
consumers the choice of paying two separate prices for motor vehicle
insurance”. The Group believes its motor insurance policy is now the
most transparent in the market place with respect to the treatment of
motor claims.

Higher customer satisfaction has been achieved in claims than previously reported, as
shown below. Further customer research is being conducted in relation to retention of
customers who have made a claim to further improve the customer claims experience.

Overall Claims Satisfaction
Motor Home

~ Nov-04 chang Jun-04  Nov-04
NSW
viC
QLD
.SA
WA

National

Source: Woolcort Survey November 2004

Other measures that validate the hlgh Ievel of claims customer service being delivered
include:

e Short tail personal lines customer disputes / number of claims. lodged — This
measure has improved to 0.30% in 1HO5 down from 0.32% in 2H04.

e The ratio of complaint levels/direct policies in-force in the major portfolios of motor
and home sold under IAG brands has |mproved slightly from 0.016% in 2H04 to
0.015% in 1H05.

_The ability to achieve consistent financial lmprovements within the operatlons without

compromlsmg ‘on customer retention’ and claims ‘satisfaction reflects the sustainable
nature of the strong result.

B.3 Operating improvements including claims

Integration - CGU

>

>

Throughout 2004, use of the IAG produrement model for supply chain management for
the CGU business has. increased and is now delivering substantial savings. The
‘savings being realised were part of the integration saving targets. '

Motor claims

The preferred supplier initiative was extended in 1HOS5 to cover providers of materials
and services such as' glass, radiators, suspension: and mechanical, as well as towing.
These preferred suppliers are appointed through a rigorous tender process focussing
on probity, quality, efficiency and business need. Once appointed contractual
arrangements are put in place to ensure customers-receive quality service. These
arrangements ensure ‘competitive: cost structures, improve payment turnaround time
for suppliers and improve relationships with these suppliers through information
sharing.
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Particularly pleasing is the strong support received by the model in the independent
submission to the Productivity Commission by the Australian Consumers Association
(ACA). The ACA said, “...most consumers are happy, in fact prefer, to let their insurer
manage the repair”. :

Furthermore, the draft report by the Productivity Commission released in November
2004 said, “Preferred smash repairer (PSR) arrangements benefit insurers, consumers
and many repairers. Further, PSR arrangements should not adversely affect the

quality and safety of repair”.

The effectiveness of these supply chain initiatives is reflected in the claims satisfaction
rates noted earlier and in the continued achievement of a sustained improvement in
average repair costs.

Home claims

>

The home contents procurement models manage the replacement of goods. These
procurement models involve business reiationships with preferred suppliers resulting
in significant savings to both the bottom line and the time taken to replace items and
settle the claim for the customer.

Existing procurement models covering: the replacement of electrical goods and
jewellery have been enhanced during 1HO5 to provide more reliable and efficient
service. Further, addltlonal models have been introduced to offer more flexibility in
claim settlement. » o

72% penetration has bee_n__ﬁachieved{ i use of home claims procurement models
nationally, representing almost double .the penetration in 1HO5 with some regions
achieving above 90%. This has led to reduced costs for snmllar claims and improved
customer satisfaction results.

C. Long-tail Personal Lines

C.1 Compulsory Third Party

A milestone was reached in June 2004 — 2 million CTP nsks in-force across NSW, QLD and
- ACT. Market shares by state are shown below.

l Risk state (Privately underwritten)

I Non-risk state (Government underwritten)

TAS Market Share in

' ACT 100%

Sources: NSW CTP market share: Motor Accident Authority (MAA) .
QLD CTP market share: Motor Accident Insurance Commission (MAIC)

Note: Market shares are based on 12 month roiling average of total premiums.
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C.1.1 CTP - New South Wales

1 4

>

The NSW CTP portfolio continues to generate strong operating margins. Apart from
the stability of the scheme, resulting from the legislative reforms in October 1999,
other factors influencing the lower claims frequency include, improved vehicle safety
and safer driving behaviours.

There is a continual focus on ensuring that CTP is positioned to provide an appropriate
return on capital into the future. To this end the Group has begun to engage the Motor
Accidents Authority’s assistance in ensuring that pricing and related regulations
recognise the capital intensity of CTP under the current APRA requirements.

Financial assistance and expertise has continued to be provided to a range of worthy
community activities and research which are aligned to reducing risk, increasing the
understanding of the drivers of risk or increasing the likelihood of better medical
outcomes for those injured in motor vehicle accidents. Current activities include:

. Continued sponsorship of the Careflight helicopter;

o Funding research by Mo_nas.h University Research Accident Centre into better
understanding the key influences on changes in accident fre'quen'cy over time;

o Crash testing to assess the relative effectiveness of various types of head
restraints; and ' _
. Funding the provision of an additional operating theatre at Westmead

Childrens’ Hospltal Burns Unit.

From the claims management perspective, as the leader in this market, the Group
continues to leverage its scaie and expertise to drive claims efficiencies contributing to
improved margins.  Over time it has: consistently ' outperformed key industry
benchmarks. This can be seen. |n the -following' measures last published by
Trowbridge Deloitte in September 2004 as at June 2004:

° Reported claim frequency continues to be below the industry;

. Average' incurred claim cost is below the industry average;

. Average finalised cost of claims remains below the industry average;

. Large claims experience is less than would be expected based on market
share;

. Claims finalisation rate remains well ahead of the rest of the industry;

. Average finalised cost of Motor Accidents Compensation Act 1999 (‘MACA’)
claims continues to track at approximately 20% less than the 1988 Act
experience; and

. Exposure to the 1988 Act continues to fall, with more than 99% of the claims
lodged under this Act now finalised.

Customers also continue to benefit from the stable and effective regulatory regime
through real price decreases since December 1999. Since February 2004, Sydney
Metro rates have fallen by 2%.
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Similar to the experience noted for NSW motor insurance, the affordability of NSW
CTP has also improved. The following graph shows that the benchmark premium

(‘Sydney Best Metro’) is now only 34% of average weekly earnings, compared with
42% in December 1999.

CTP NSW AFFORDABILITY INDEX
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C.1.2 CTP - Australian Capltal Terntory

Australian Personal Lines continues to:besthe sole provnder of CTP in the ACT and the
scheme is performing in line with expectatlons

The effects of the ACT’s Civil Liabili “”Reform legislation on the scheme are being
monitored. These changes were mtroduced fo produce savings for the ACT personal
injury schemes, including CTP. The- regulatlons giving substance to the legislation

have only recently been implemented and are being monitored to assess its potential
impact on sc;heme costs.

C.1.3  CTP-Queensland

The number of risks in-force has grown by 11.1% since June 2004 and increased to
2.0% of the market from 1.8% at June 2004. This portfolio is still an immaterial
element of the overali long tail personal lines performance.
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Australian Commercial Lines

Half-year Half-year Half-yea
Australian Commercial Lines ended ended ended

Dec-03

Gross written premium
Gross earned premium
Reinsurance expense
Net premium revenue
Net claims expense
Commission expense
Underwriting expense
Underwriting profit
Investment income on technical reserves
Insurance profit
Profit from fee based business
Total commercial line result
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio : o
Administration ratio '
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)

»  The Australian commercral bu siress was restructured in July 2004 to incorporate the
former intermediary business and workers’ compensation business. The business now
encompasses commercial Irnes werkers’ compensation and related fee-based

businesses.

> The commercial suite of products, provided nationally, includes fire & ISR (industrial
special risks), commercial motor, rural insurance, marine insurance, public liability,
professionai indemnity and home warranty.

> The workers’ compensation business underwrites in the risk states of Western
Australia (WA), Australian Capital Territory (ACT), Tasmania (TAS) and Northern
Territory (NT). The fee-based businesses comprise workers’ compensation services
in NSW, Victoria (VIC) and South Australia (SA), premium funding and risk
management and safety management.

> The result also includes the inwards reinsurance run-off.

A. Operational Results

» The commercial business accounted for 24.8% of the Group’s 1HO5 GWP and
contributed 16.2% of the Group’s insurance profit for the year.

»  The GWP for 1H05 was 7.7% higher than 1H04. This included strong growth in some
classes — for example, 8% for fire, 20% for iiability (for product and public liability) and
16% for commercial accident. The growth is attributed to:

. Rates not softenlng:m the SME market as early as expected, particularly in fire
and accident classes;

) Generally htgher than expected retention rates; and

. Commercial pollmes growmg by around 5%.
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Consistent with the seasonality of the commercial business, GWP for 1H05 was 2.1%
lower than 2H04.

Workers’ compensation insurance premiums in the risk states remained relatively flat,
principally due to the reductions in industry rates released in Western Australia by the
Premium Rates Committee for the 12 months commencing 30 June 2004. Market
share in the pnvately underwritten states has remained relatively stable at around 30%
nationally.

The reinsurance expense for this business has reduced in both absolute and
proportionate terms. This follows a restructure of the reinsurance arrangements
whereby less facultative reinsurance is used and greater reliance is, instead, placed
on the Group's surplus reinsurance treaties.

The 1HO5 combined ratio included an adverse discount rate adjustment of $37m
(5.1% on COR), compared to a benefit in the last two half-year periods of $46m (6.7%
on COR) in 1H04 and $15m (2.3% on COR) in 2H04. The underlying combined ratio
was 96.1% in 1H05, a sustained improvement on 97.6% in 1H04 and 101.5% in 2H04.

‘On the same basis, the underlying loss ratio was 65.7% in 1HO5, compared to 67.8%
in 2HO4. Included in the 1HOS loss ratiosis-a net increase of $37m in liability claims
reserves, comprised of increases in workers’ compensation and product liability
‘reserves, largely due.to asbestos, and a reduction in reserves for current commercial
liability business. -

Throughout 2004 there has been an increased focus on asbestos issues in the
community and the Group has seen an increase in the number of claims reported.
Based on the latest available information, there is a potential for a higher number of
more costly mesothelioma claims in the future. Accordingly, the Group increased its
reserves in 1HO5 toreflect the greater-ihix of these higher: cost claims. This led to an
increase in' the ‘survival ratio to 54 tithés:the -average of the last three year's claims
paid (‘survival ratio’), from 50 times at'30:June 2004. - This ratio is provided as an
indicator of the Group’s reserving for this liability class. However, it should be used
with caution as research indicates .that.the underlying.exposures and measurements
used are-not- sufﬂCIently oomparable to make reliable .comparisons. The Group is -
participating in research being conducted to get more consistent information for
Australian experience, exposure type and treatment of estimates, prudential margins
and recoveries. However; based on-the information currently available, the Group
understands its provisions to be at’ the conservatwe end of the local market range.

The releases -in the reserves for the ongomg liability business reflects the Group'’s
growing confidence in the realisation of benefits from the tort reforms implemented in
recent periods and underplnned the Group s reductions in public liability rates.

The insurance margin of 11.5% for 1H05 is an improvement on the 9.6% reported both
for 1HO4 and 2HO04. This result is particularly strong, when considering the margin in
1HO5 absorbed the impact of a $37m net claims reserve increase.

The increase in the commission ratio in 1HO5 to 12.3% from 11.8% and 11.9% in
1H04 and 2HO04, respectively, was due to a combination of a lower proportion of
reinsurance commission - (on business ceded under surplus and facultative
reinsurance) and a.change in mix of the portfolio to higher commission commercial

business.

The administration ratio of 18.1% in 1HO5 is an improvement from 21.7% in 2H04,
which included expenses relating to the launch of the home warranty and marine
insurance business. The 1HO04 ratio of 18.0% included a benefit from arising from a
fire service levy credit notified in that period. Whiist the business derived synergy
benefits during 1HO5, there was continued reinvestment in the business to improve
product offerings and processes, which will assist in sustaining margins during the
next 12 months.
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B. Operations and Customers

B.1 Process improvements

»  The Group's professional risk team was one of the first in the Australian market to
launch a real-time internet quoting system for the Group’s products. CGU is also the
only insurance provider to offer extensive training in professional risks to brokers and
the feedback from them has been overwhelmingly positive.

»  The Group continues to develop its innovative e-learning tool to deliver training for
staff and authorised representatives. The Group also introduced a web portal
(“Replink”) to assist authorised ‘representatives to provide necessary documentation,
such as Statements of Advice, to customers as required by legislation. The database
is also used for updating ASIC records as part of ongoing compliance.

> Initiatives such as these, togetherwnth a long-track record of service and the Group’s
very strong credit rating, contribute to the Group’s sustained retention of customers
when premium rates in the mark_et are volatile. '

> The workers' compensation business in Victoria (non-risk operation) has completed a
review that will result in improved alignment of the claims groups to ensure better
accountability within teams for the end-to-end management of-claims. The desired
outcomes of the project are to lmprove customer service.

> Following completion of mtegration the business launched a review with the following
objectives: to do things better today; to become more competitive; and to build a
business that is more agile and able to take advantage of growth opportunities. The
project will review the way business is done with a VIeW fo lmprove consistency and
share ideas through various parts of the business.

| > The workers’ compensatlon risk states are progressmg a systems conversmn whlch
will result in o_ne system being utilised forall of these states. This will result in systems
maintenance and support savings (systems and training), driving down operating
costs.

B.2 Product and distribution development

> Key initiatives in this area include: | , S o
. Continuing to develop new products to. broaden the product rahge on the
e-business platform, providing intermediaries the ability to' quote and issue
cover with the end-to-end transaction completed by the single keying of

information;

. Relaunch of CGU'’s flagship business package policy revising the product to
improve its marketability; and

. Development of a motor fleet .offering, which encompasses insurance

coverage and accident management and reporting service.

B.3 Outlook

> The market IS expected to contmue ltS downward trend in rates, particularly at the
corporate end.. The business will continue to focus on risk selection and achieving
required technical rates across the portfolio.

» The eCommerce: dehvery systems will continue to drive efficiencies in the SME
markets.

> Workers’ compensatlon premlums in WA are expected ‘to rise as a result of the
introduction of regulatory changes, this increase being required to cover the increased
cost of claims arising from the increased benefits payable to claimants.
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C.

D.

The business will continue to grow through focus on its established strategic initiatives

of: v

e Selectively targeting specific segments and accounts while retaining the
positive features of the current portfolio mix;

. Increasing flexibility in pricing, risk acceptance and whole of account
approach, while maintaining underwntlng discipline and technical benchmarks
at product level; and

. Using rating strength in selected products to grow market share, without
allowing substantial deterioration of rating strength. -

Fee based businesses/managed schemes

The fee-based profit for 1H05 of $11m is lower than the $20m reported for 1HO04. This
reflects lower performance fees received. These performance fees constitute a
substantial portion of the profit from these businesses and can vary considerably.

Fee income from the Group’s risk ma'n:aigement and safety offerings, whilst not of
significant size at present, continues to grow.

Inwards Remsurance run-off

PoEmy T

The commutation strategy for the mwards reinsurance. run-off contlnues to progress

~ with four additional commutations in 1HGS. . This brings the calendar year total to 15
. contracts and resulted in net savmgs to the Group

- As at December 2004, 65% of the refmaimng oontracts are subJect to discussions on
possible commutations. . Zasiie .

The net provision for the outstahding' claims “on this portfolio is now approximately
$92m, a reduction of around 10% since June 2004.
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International General Insurance

International operations

Gross written premium

Half-year

Half-year
ended
Jun-04

ended
Dec-03

Gross earned premium
Reinsurance expense

Net premium revenue
Net claims expense
Commission expense
Underwriting expense

Underwriting profit
Investment income on technical reserves

Insurance profit
China Automobile Association

Total international result
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Administration ratio
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)

. Expense Ratio
45.0% - .

40.0% 1
35.0% 4
30.0% A
25.0% A
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%
5.0% 4
0.0%
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@ Administration Ratio % (NEP) £1Commission ratic % (NEP}

£10.0% - Combined ratio

105.0% 1
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95.0% 1
90.0% 1
85.0%
80.0% 1
75.0% 4
70.0% A
65.0% 4

60.0%

1HO5

FY01 FY02 FYO3 FYo4
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A.

>

International — New Zealand and Captive

GWP growth of 9.9% compared with 1H04 includes the currency translation impact of
a 5.7% appreciation in the New Zealand doliar over the period. On a local New
Zealand currency basis the growth was 4.2%. This level of growth was consistent with
industry experience and the Group retains its market leading position with 37% of the
market (based on the latest available data from Insurance Council of New Zealand for
the year ended 30 September 2004).

The New Zealand market exhibits similar traits to the Australian market dynamics with
increasing competition and moderate system growth. To counteract this, IAG NZ
implemented initiatives to launch new products and capabilities to promote growth.
These included three small distribution channel acquisitions since 30 June 2004:

. Clipper Club Marine Underwriters Limited, a specialist marine underwriter and
distributor of marine insurance products;

. National Auto Club Underwriters Agency (NZ) Limited, a specialist underwriter
of high performance motor vehicle insurance; and _

. Mike Henry Travel Insurance Liimited. The full acquisition of this business will
be completed over two years —-50.1% initially, then the remaining 49.9% on 30
June 2006." This business will ‘operate under its current brand and continue to
distribute through intermediaries.

As the IAG NZ business already underwrites these businesses, the acquisitions will
not immediately add to GWP levels, but provide the ability to leverage the distribution
capabilities within these businesses to promote the Group’s products.

As in 2H04, the reinsurance expense ‘for the Group’s international operations is a
credit. During 1HOS, the Group’s captive reinsurer earned reinsurance premium of
$178m from the Group’s other businesses, while it paid out reinsurance expenses of
$112m. This $66m gap, which reflects risk retained by the captive and allowance for
expenses, is then credited to the reinsurance expense line for the Group on
consolidation. As this credit is larger than the reinsurance expense for IAG NZ, there is
net reinsurance revenue for the Group’s international operations.

The 1H05 combined ratio for the Group’s international operations was 83.5%,
compared to 90.4% in 2HO4. This reflects a continuing trend of reduced claims
frequency -and favourable underwriting conditions in New Zealand. The Group’s
captive reinsurer made a significant contribution to the low combined ratio due to the
absence of any major catastrophe claims in 1H05. However, as this performance is
dependant on high severity, low frequency events, it cannot be assumed to be
sustainable in 2HO5. -

The administration ratio of 16.1% in 1HO5 is in-line with expectations for this business.
Given the timing difference in the realisation of mtegratlon costs and benefits in 1HO4
and 2H04, the 1HO5 administration ratio of 16.1% is more comparable with the full
FYO04 administration ratio of 16.2%.

The increasing trend in the commlssmn ratio since 1H04 is caused predominately by
two main factors:

. The payment of commissions linked specifically to profitability and growth,
which is a consequence of the high level of profitability currently being
achieved by the broker channel; and

. The consolidation within the broker market whereby brokers earning
traditionally higher commission rates are acquiring smaller brokerages, which
attracted a lower commission rate.
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A number of factors are driving broker consclidation including potential regulatory
changes, succession planning and attempts to leverage scale. A general rule is that
brokers who are paid higher commission scales are absorbing brokers being paid
lower commission scales. The business monitors these developments by ensuring
that higher commission is linked to greater value delivery to end customers and/or
performance conditions (such as profit or growth).

The New Zealand business had been developing a new IT system for its business on
a standalone basis during the past two years, in accordance with Group needs and
resources when this was initiated. Following extensive reviews during the year, and
- taking into consideration the Group's current resources and technology strategy, the
Group resolved, in November 2004, to decommission this project (all costs had been
expensed as incurred). The basis for the decision was that, with JAG’s broader focus
now being both to leverage scale and to ensure that costs are managed effectively,
significant synergies were achievable by adopting the Australian policy and claims
systems (HUON and Bonus) by the IAG New Zealand direct business.

Development of this common platform will commence in early 2005, with roll-out
expected for the direct perscnal lines business by the end of 2006. Many
enhancements identified by the New Zealand business for the NZ system will be
incorporated into the Australian solution, along with the benefits of other functionality
not previously anticipated in the NZ system :

There are no expected. lncremehtal costs assocaated wrth mrgratmg the New Zealand
business to the Australian platforms as. the antlmpated costs are in line with the costs
- budgeted for completlon of the standalone system.

As part of the Group-wide focus on improving customer service Ievels full roliout and
training of 1,200 staff nationwide to use the new Customer Feedback System was
completed in December 2004. This -system utilises feedback provided by customers to
help determine aspects of service and delivery that may need improvement, and
records all complaints, compliments and general feedback.

The benefits to customers followmg the completion of the NZI mtegratlon is reflected in
the overall increase in service levels in the call centres, which delivered a 12 month
high of 83% in December 2004, with an overall customer satisfaction score of 81%
exceeding.the target of 80%

NZi conducts’ research every six months amongst brokers to measure the strength of
their relationship with NZI, and aims to identify areas of focus to retain, and grow its
business through its broker partners. Dunng 1HO5 the business achieved its third
consecutive increase in broker satisfaction; both overall and'in claims.

In October 2004, IAG New Zealand was awarded first place for 2004 in the “Large
Business” category, in the annual New Zealand Sustainable Business Awards. The
award is made in recognition of organisations working towards economic,
environmental and social sustainability.
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- B.

International — Asian Operations

The Group has continuing interests in two operations in Asia, being a 20% ownership
stake in Thailand’s Safety Insurance and 100% ownership of China Automobile
Association, a company providing road service in Beijing.

The Asian Tsunami clearly affected the Thai operations. However, this has no
material impact on the Group’s investment.

Since June 2004, six managers have relocated to China to lead the next phase of
expansion of the Group’s Chinese operations by expanding the road service
operations and related services, as well as providing a local base for investigation of
other opportunities in the region. This investment of people and development
generated the net expenditure for the period and was in-line with plan.

Financial Services

»

The Group’s financial services operation;-ClearView Retirement Solutions, was sold in
January 2004 for $218m plus an addltlonal $50m earn-out, subject to business
performance to June 2008.

The earn-out provision is based on mcreases in the embedded value of the business.
There i is no amount payable at this stage
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Investments

A. Investment Performance

»  For 1HO5, the Group’s investment portfolios returned 6.2%. A breakdown of the actual
and benchmark returns by asset class for each half-year period (i.e. not annualised) is
set out in the following table.

Actual B’mark Actual B’mark Actual B’mark

Investment returns return return return return return return Notes
1H04 1HO4 2H04 2H04 1HO05 1HOS

% % % % %%

Australian equities 17.9 171  a
Listed property trusts 16.3 165 b
International equities (1.8) (19 ¢
New Zealand equities - - d
Fixed interest 3.9 38 e
Cash 27 27 f
Surplus capital portfolio 3.5 21 g
7.2 6.9

Total weighted average
Offsetting derivative component of

overlay (1.0)  {(1.0) h

Total with overlay 6.2 5.9
Tactical option programme - - i
Totai

6.2 5.9

{incl derivatives)

Notes:

a For 1H04, combination of S&P/ASX200 Accumulation Index and S&F/ASX100 Accumulation index. For 2H04 and 1HOS, combination of S&F/ASX200

Accumulation Index, S&P/ASX200 Accumulation Index (ex-IAG and ex LPTs) and, from June 2004, the S&FP/ASX300 Accumulation Index (ex-IAG ex LPTs).
X S&P/ASX20Q Property Accumulation Index. LPTs have been managed as a discrete portfolio since 1 March 2004.

¢ MSCIWorld index (ex-Australia,) net dividends Feinvested, in Austrafian dollars. ‘ ]

gg‘%b)inatidn of NZSE30 and NZSE40 Gross New Zealand equity indices in Australian doliars. (These assets were sold for international shares in December

e. Currently, tafiored benchmarks based on the liability profie of each of the Group's insurance portfolios, discounted to the Australian or New Zealand government
yield curves, are used. Historicaily, a number of market benchmarks have been used.

f. Combination of UBS Bank Bill index (Aust} and UBS Bank Bill )’ndex (NZ) in Australian dollars.

g. For explanation of the surplus capital portfolio, see section C.1.

h. The performance has been measured as contribution to total fund. It représénts only the derivatives component of the ovérféy, in net terms, the overlay generated
a $7m contribution to profit in 1HOS, as the cost of the derivative was more than been offset by the total return achiaved on the physical equitles component of the

overfay. .
i The tactical option protection programme was outside the benchmark measures and therefore no benchmark return measures were applicable. The performance
was measured as contribution to total fund.

»  The Group’s portfolios outperfoifned ‘the benchmark return by 27 basis points for
1HOS.

» A summary of the investment income and net capital gains/losses generated on the
technical reserves and shareholders’ funds portfolio is set out below:

Portfolio income (pre-tax) . ) _
and incl. derivatives 1HO4 S 2H04 [ 1HOS

Return (%)*  A$m _ .Return(%)*  ASm Retumn® (%)

Technical reserves
Shareholders' funds

Total investment income
* These returns have been annualised.
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»  The technical reserves portfolio remains predominantly exposed to the Australian and
New Zealand fixed interest sectors in line with tailored benchmarks that reflect the
underlying currency and duration of the liabilities of the various portfolios within the
Group. The total return achieved on the technical reserves assets over this period
was 4.05% (8.1% annualised), 26 basis points above the benchmark return for the
period.

> The Group's shareholders’ funds continued to be predominantly invested in equities
over 1HO5 and contributed $287m to the Group’s 1HOS5 results.

»  The Australian sharemarket returned 17.1% for 1HO5 (9.0% for 2H04). Strong
domestic demand and corporate earnings plus high commodity prices drove the
markets to a record high.

> The return on the intemational equities sector was minus 1.9% in Australian dollar
terms (i.e. unhedged) for 1H05. This compares with a positive return of 12.0% in
Australian dollar terms for 2H04. The underlying international equity markets
performed soundly over 1HO05. However, the return in local currency terms was
materially affected by the rise in the Australian dollar over the half year. (The A$ rose
12.5% against the US$ over 1H05.) 'The Groups international equities exposure
remained unhedged throughout the penod

B. Asset Class Exposure - et

This table represents the Group’s effective exposure (i.e. after allowance for
. derivatives) to each asset class, as at the dates shown.

v

Technical Shareholders’ :Technical Shareholders’. Technical Shareholders’
Reserves™ Funds =~~~ Reserves Funds ' Reserves = .Funds

Assetclass - .
exposure as at 31 Dec 2qo3 31Dec 2003 130Jun 2004 30 Jun 2004 31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2004

Australian equities
Listed property trusts
International equities
Fixed interest
Cash

Surplus capital®
Total

Note:

1. Listed property trusts were included in Australian equities prior to 1 March 2004.
2. Includes Private Equity.

3, For explanation of the surplus capital portfolio, see sectlon C.1.

C. Strategic Asset Allocation

C.1 Sha_reholders’ funds

» The process of introducing greater diversification into the strategic asset allocatlon
model for the shareholders’ funds continued during 1HOS.

> Part of the Australian equities portfoho managed by the internal asset management
team was transitioned from the “core” Australian equities style to the second internally
managed research-driven Australian equities style. This “research” style targets a
higher active return and higher tracking error. Over 1H05, it contributed positively to
the active return above the benchmark.

»  Two external Australian equities managers have also been appointed and funded. As
at 31 December 2004, these managers were responsible for a total of approximately
8% of Australian equity holdings. All of the international equities continue to be
managed externally.
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A surplus capital portfolio (part of the shareholders’ funds) was established late in
1HO05. This portfolio is intended to hold the Group’s capital above the benchmark MCR
multiple. The assets will be a highly liquid mix with at least 80% in cash and fixed
interest and the balance in Australian equities. As at 31 December 2004, an initial

allocation of $50m had been made to the surplus capital portfolio. Given the Group'’s

surplus capital position at balance date (ie. 1.85x MCR), further funds were allocated
to the surplus capital fund in early 2005. This increases the Group’s interest rate
leverage and decreases its equity exposure.

c.2 Technical reserves funds

The return on the technical reserves portfolio has been generated from the physical
fixed interest assets and from the overlay. The overlay consists of a combination of
physical equities plus offsetting derivatives positions. It has been designed to capture
active market return on the holdings of physical equities whilst maintaining full effective
exposure to the fixed interest sector. ‘

The funding of the derivative overiay strategy that commenced in June 2004 was
completed, with more of the assets backing the technical reserves being switched out
of fixed interest and invested in Australian equities and listed property trusts. At the
same time, derivatives were acquired to neutralise the equity market risk associated
with this investment in equities..

The active management of the additional assets invested in the sharemarket, after
allowing for the fixed interest return foregone and the costs of the overlay generated a
net contribution of $7m (pre-tax) in 1HO5.

D. Group Assets Under Managément

Assets under management

as at

Other*

Total investments - on balance sheet®

ClearView Personal Investment Trusts®
External wholesale mandates®

Total assets under management

Technical reserves’
Financial Services — Life Company*
Outside equity interest - Unitholders’ funds®
Shareholders' funds

31-Dec-2003  30-Jun-2004  31-Dec-2004

Notes
1.

The technical reserves balance as at 31 December 2004 is stated net of GST on outstanding claims and
premium debtors of $0.2bn.
As a consequence of the sale of the ClearView business, the life company funds and personal investment

trust funds are no longer part of the Group. The Group continues to manage the same ClearView portfolios
as before the sale. However, they are now disclosed as part of the external wholesale mandates.

These two items in aggregate represent the total external mandates. The unitholders’ funds are shown
separately as the trusts in which they are invested are controlled entities of the Group and consolidated in

the Group’s balance sheet.

The balance classified as ‘Other’ represents items that are not under investment management, which include
cash in corporate treasury and investments in related entities.

The prior period balances have been adjusted to exclude investment in properties occupied by the business,
in preparation for the transition to IFRS.
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The growth in the Group’s assets under management from 2H04 to 1HO5S was
primarily driven by a combination of:

e A general increase in the technical reserves as the business continues to grow;
and

s Market value gains in the shareholders’ funds and the Group’s continued
profitability during the half-year, offset by dividend payments to shareholders.

The technical reserve split between the business segments as at 31 December 2004

is:

e Personal lines 60%;
e Commercial lines 34%; and .

¢ International 6%.

D.1 Credit quality of assets under management

b

The credit quality of the Group’s fixed interest and cash portfolio is considered to be
very strong, with 45% invested in AUStraHan government securities and a further 42%
in fixed interest or cash securities ‘that” are rated ‘AAA’. -The minimum acceptable
credit quality is ‘A’ rated. The portfolio comprisés predominantly hlghly liquid securities
and seeks to match the duration of the meu;ance |labI|ItleS

Cash & fixed interest by Credit quality
as at 31 December 2004

Cash & Deposnts
: (Grade AAAm)
Fixed interest 9%
(Grade A) .
4%

Govt. Securities

Fixed interest (Grade A5%
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Corporate

Half-year Half-year
ended ended

Dec-03 June-04

Head office
Fee based business (profit)/ioss
Amortisation

interest

Total corporate expenses

A. Corporate

> Corporate expenses reduced by $12m in 1HO5 to $92m, attributable to lower
amortisation expenses. ‘

> Head office expenses were in line with the prior half-years at $13m for 1H05. The
most significant expense in this category is the cost of servicing the Group’s extensive
shareholder base which reached a milestone in February 2005 — the first time there
were fewer than 1m shareholders (1.9m upon demutualisation in August 2000).

»  There was no accelerated goodwrll amortisation in the period ($12m in 2H04). The
$52m expense is the six monthly charge on the remarnlng intangible assets.

> Following the adoption of lntematlonal Accountlng Standards, from the half year
reporting period ended 31 December 2005 there will no longer be regular goodwill
amortisation chargés. However goodwrll shall be subject to annual review and any
impairment will be recognised in the statement of financial performance.

> Interest expense remam_s_unchanged and represents the Group’s term debt funding
which has:an average fixed interest rate of approximately 6.7%.

B. Changes In Financial Legislativ.e Requirements

B 1 International accountlng standards

> IAG s requrred to prepare financial reports using Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards for the first time for the year ended
30 June 2006 and will apply them in the half year reporting for the period ending
31 December 2005. A discussion of the impacts of the change in standards is
included in Note 13 of the notes to the half-year statutory financial statements.

B.2 Tax consolidation

»  The government recently introduced a bill to enact changes to the tax consolidation
transition rules for demutualised insurers. This was foreshadowed in -an ATO press
release over a year ago. It may generate a favourable adjustment to the Group’s tax
IIabl|It|eS but it is not p033|ble to determune the amount, if any, at this time.

B.3 Licence consohdatron iy

»  The Group contlnued to successfully reduce the number of llcensed general insurers
within the wholly-owned Australian operations. On 3 December 2004, the Group
received Federal Court approval under the Insurance Act to transfer the general
insurance business of SGIO Insurance Limited and SGIC General Insurance Limited
to Insurance Australia Limited, effective 31 December 2004.
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Approval was also granted by the Federal Court to effect an interdependent scheme of
arrangement under the Corporations Act, which eliminated six entities from the Group.

From 1 January 2005, Insurance Australia Limited is the insurer for the general
insurance businesses that use the SGIC and SGIO brands.

C. Information Systems

v

During 1H05, the Group’s technology services efforts were focused on three key
areas:

e Further integration of CGU;

o Upgrading the technology infrastructure to deliver increased service levels with
respect to robustness, speed, flexibility and security; and

¢ The rollout of “CGU Connect” the new generation of web based systems for the
broker market.

CA1 lntegration

>

During December 2004, Technology Serwces completed the final projects that were
key enablers for the reallsatlon of the CGU integration benefits. These major

- achievements were:

e The decommissioning.of an addmonal f ive workers compensation systems,
completing the task of reducing’ the number .of systems handling workers'’
compensatlon busrness from 13 to 3;

e The CGU Data Centre in Latrobe Qtreet Melbourne was migrated to the Group’s
new Melbourne Data Centre (MDC This completes the consolidation of the
three Australian data centres into the one facullty and

¢ The consolidation of the CGU-Sydney CBD staff into. 388 George Street head
office.. This completed all staff relocations .and brought the number of staff
relocated in the consolidation of premises across Australia to well over 4,000.

Only the data centre mtegratlon and some of the staff relocations were considered in
the original integration costs and benefits. The other elements were identified later
and managed within the project framework. ‘

C.2 Technology infrastructure upgrade

>

The transformatlon of the Australlan technology infrastructure continued. Durlng
1HO5, the desktop refresh was completed with over 12,000 new desktops/laptops
deployed throughout the organlsatlon

VOIP (Voice Over Internet Protocol) was rolled out to 2,500 staff, providing the
benefits of a combined voice and data network. Benefits include:

o Staff mobility.i.e. staff can be at home or at another office and have access to the
same phone and. customer systems as if they were in their workplace. This
provides improved flexrblllty for people and additional business continuity
protection; and ‘

» Reduced telecommunication costs.

Completion of the VOIP rollout to the remalnlng staff is on track for completion by the
end of FY06.

The New Zealand business has already implemented VOIP through its network.
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C.3 New technology for CGU brokers /

> CGU Connect is the Group’s name for its new generation of web-based systems for
the CGU broker network. It has been developed in a modular architecture that will
allow new products to be made available as they are developed. The Commercial
Pack, Home and Landlords’ insurance products were all launched during 1HO5.

C.4 New technology for NZ personal lines

> The project to install- the Australian personal lines systems into the New Zealand
business has commenced. The target date for new business being on the New
Zealand version is 1HO7.
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Financial Position, Dividends and Capital

A. Statement of Financial Position

IAG Group Balance Sheet
Asat . ;

31-Dec-03 ~ 30-Jun-04  31-Dec-04

Assets

Investments

Premium receivables
Reinsurance recoveries on claims
Other recoveries on claims
Deferred acquisition costs
Goodwill and other intangibles
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Outstanding claims

Unearned premium

Interest bearing liabilities

Gross life insurance policy liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders
Qutside equity interests

Total equity

»  The main movements in the balance sheet by category are:

¢ A net increase in investments mainly due to the market value gains on its
shareholders’ funds and cash generated from the business, offset by dividend
payments of $223m to ordinary shareholders and $15m to reset preference
shareholders.

e The “other” assets category represents the aggregate of trade debtors,
prepayments, deferred tax assets and plant & equipment. The decrease in this
balance of $241m in 1HO5 was a result of:

— The trade debtors balance reducing to more normal levels compared to
2H04, which was abnormally high due to a significant investment
transaction outstanding in the cash management trust as at 30 June
2004; and

— Prepayments being seasonally lower at 31 December compared to the 30
June.

e The increase in the outstanding claims balance is due to the combination of a H
lower discount rate on claims and general business growth and increased
reserving for workers’ compensation and product liability.

e The reduction in “other” liabilities was mainly due to settlement of seasonal
accruals.

« The reduction in outside equity was mainly due to the lower investments held by
external parties within the Group’s wholesale investment trusts.
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B. Capital Management

B.1 Capital adequacy/MCR

Coverage of regulatory capital requirements IAG Group Insurance IAG Group Insurance]
Australia Ltd Australia Ltd

Group!

A$m
Tier 1 capltal

Paid-up ordinary shares 1,286
Hybrid equity -
Reserves -
Retained eamings 2,341

308

Excess technical provisions (net of tax)

Less: deductions (1,116)

2,819
Tier 2 capital
Term subordinated notes 608
Capital base 3,427

Minimum capital requirements (MCR):
Australian general insurance businesses

1,614

International insurance businesses "
Minimum capital requirements
MCR multiple

Notes:

1.  The MCR and capital base for International insurance businesses Is calzculated on a similar basls to the Australian
regulatory requirements and includes the captive reinsurance business cnd the operations in New Zealand.

»  The Greup continues to provide iACR information for both the consolidated Australian
operations and for the whole Group. The dafa is based on applying, in principle, the
APRA standards for individual entities to the relevant consolidated results, pending the
publication by APRA of a standard to determine - prudentlal capital requirements at a
consolidated level.

> The IAG Group multlple of 1 85x MCR as at 31 December 2004 remains above the
Group’s ‘current benchmark multiple ‘of 1.55x MCR. This benchmark is set by
reference to the Group’s economic icapital requirements based on detailed modelling
and the Group's risk appetite. It was reduced from 1.60x to 1.55x following the issue
of contingent capital — See section B.4.

» The Group capital base, as defined by APRA, has increased from $2,894m to
$3,183m for the six month period due to:

e Strong earnings before amortisation of goodwﬂl and after tax for the penod (net of
final dividend paid in October 2004); and

¢ Reduction in net future income tax benefits p‘fimaril)'?} due to unrealised gains from
strong investment performance;

Offset by:

+ The negative impact of forelgn gxchange movements_on the US$ denommated
term subordinated debt (recognised as Lower Tier 2 capital); and

e A small reduction in excess technical provisions which arises from the net effect
of an increased ‘excess’ on claim reserves and ‘an mcreased liability for
unexpired risk (premium Ilablhtles) as a result of:- T

— The exclusion of deferred  réinsurance expense for future business from
capital by APRA, which increased the required prowssons by $29m (pre-
tax);
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— The exclusion of all run-off portfolios from the calculation of diversification
benefits; and

— Weather related seasonality factors whereby the Group’s actuaries
allocate a higher premium liability at December to allow for additional
storm frequency in the early months of the calendar year. ‘

»  The key elements of the Group’s MCR are as follows:
As at ' .

s

Insurance risk » 1,061 ' 71,072

Concentration risk 100 100
Investment risk 493 549
1,654 1,721

B.2 Target capital mix

IAG Capital Mix

100%
90%
80% _
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

FYo02 . FY03 FYo4 1HOS Target

B Ordinary equity & Hybrid capital = Debt

» The Group’s balancé sheet capital mix remains close to target.
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B.3 Total capitalisation and debt as at 31 December 2004

B Total Capitalisation
As at _ . ,‘ . . 30-Jun-04  31-Dec-04

$mi|

Short-term debt

Long-term debt:

Senior

Subordinated

Cross currency swap payable’
Total long-term debt

Total debt

Shareholders’ equity

Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders
Retained profits

Foreign currency translation reserve

Reset preference shares

Total shareholders’ equity (excl OEl)
Total capitalisation .

Earnings befare interest and tax (EBIT) T

Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amc;rﬁéation (EBITDA)
Market capitalisation at close of business day, 31 December 2004

- Ordinary shares ($6.43 per share)

- Reset preference shares (IAGPA & IAGPB) ' *{ =

Total market capitalisation -

Total debt/(Total debt+shareholders equity exdudind OEI)’

Total debt/(Total debt+total market capitalisation)”

EBIT interest cover (times)

EBITDA interest cover (times)

'Cross currency swaps have been entered into to hedge the currency exposure from US$ denominated subordinated debt. The
principal of the cross currency swaps is revalued to take into account movements in the US$/A$ exchange rate and is reporfed

as part of interest paying liabilities.

Yield (neto

Maturity profile of Group debt and .. Currency AS$ equivalent . interes  Interest rate &
reset preference shares principal amount principal amount rate and cross
’ Sms currency swaps) .-

Short-term debt:
NZ$50m senior fixed rate notes
Long-term debt":

NZ$50m senior fixed rate notes

A3$50m subordinated floating rate notes
A$250m subordinated fixed rate notes
US$240m subordinated fixed rate notes’
A$1.715m subordinated convertible loan®
Total debt

Reset preference shares*

IAGPA
1AGPB
1. All long-term debt has been issued as either fixed notes, or hedged to fixed rate with interest rate swaps. The yields shown are pre-tax.
2. The A% equivalent is shown net of the related cross currency swaps.
3. Fixed rate loan from the minority shareholder of Mutual Community General Insurance Pty Limited. ) )
4, The dividends yields shown on the reset preference yields are the cash yields excluding the value to investors of the attached franking credits.
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B.4 Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES)

>

On 11 January 2005, 5.5 million Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES) were issued by
IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of IAG, raising a total
of $550 million. This debt security is a form of contingent capital for the Group in that
the Group has the right to exchange the debt into capital at anytime. The existence of
this contingent capital has enabled the Group to reduce its economic capital. This has
been expressed as a reduction in the benchmark multiple of MCR by 5 basis points
from 1.60x to 1.55x.

RES are perpetual reset exchangeable notes with quarterly, floating rate interest
payments that are expected to be fully franked. The gross interest rate (before
adjustment for franking) for the period to the first reset date on 15 March 2010 is set at
a margin of 1.20% over the relevant 90 day bank bill rate.

The Group may, at any time, exchange RES for preference shares that will pay non-
cumulative, quarterly preferred floating rate dividends that are expected to be fully

. franked. Preference shares, if issued, are expected to qualify as regulatory Tier 1

capital according to their terms.

The proceeds of the offer were, through a series of intra-group loan arrangements,
invested in a portfolio of high quality, short dated, fixed interest securities, which are
managed by the Group. RES interest payments will depend on the performance and
creditworthiness of the portfolio, and other payment tests.

RES and the portfolio will be set-off in the Group’s statement of financial position with
a net asset being recorded to the extent that the portfoho value is greater than the
RES redemption amount. ’

The following table sets out the Group’s pro-forma capital adequacy position based on
the Group’s statement of financial position as at 31 December 2004, adjusted as if the
issue of RES were completed on 31.December 2004 and subsequently preference
shares were issued in exchange for all RES on issue as at that date:

- Pro-forma adjustments

Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Regulatory capital base

Minimum capital requirement (MCR)

MCR Multiple
Notes: .
1. RES are not recognised in the Group capital adequacy position as they are not eligible to be treated as regulatory capital unti such time as preference
shares are issued.
2 These amounts reflect the composition of the Group’s capital adequacy position as at 31 December 2004.
3 Assuming there has been no change in the Group's capital adequacy position at the time of exchange and all RES transaction costs have been amortised
previously.
4. Assuming that the $550 milion in investment assets have minimal investment charge and no material impact on the Group's MCR.
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B.5 Reinsurance

> The Group’s catastrophe cover was renewed effective 1 January 2005. Salient points
are:
¢ Anincrease in the catastrophe event limit purchased from $3.0bn to $3.5bn — this
increase reflects the growth of exposure (13% Australia, 5% New Zealand) over
the course of the past 12 months;

» Retained catastrophe loss for a first event remains at $100m, dropping to $75m
for a second event. Given the Group’s growth of exposures, this represents a
percentage reduction in retained loss and is well within the Group’s current
tolerable limit for income statement volatility from a single event, with the $100m
limit constituting less than 2% of net earned premium;

» The counter-party credit profile of the catastrophe programme has improved: the
expiring programme obtained cover for 66% of the limit from parties rated S&P
‘AAA/AA’ — this now. stands at 70%. Furthermore, some of the limit is now
purchased on a ‘collateralised’ basis, where reinsurers ‘have deposited funds
equivalent to their participation in a trust fund. This is superior protection relative
to that generally available in the reinsurance market;

« In terms of total expected expenditure for FYO5 relative to FY04, the renewal
increases the Group's spend by less than 3%. However, this figure may fluctuate
if business volumes or le vary significantly; and

o Based on the APRA minimum purchase requirement of a 1 in 250 years return
period, the Group’s minimum required cover for regulatory purposes is equal to
$1.25bn. The $3.5bn of cover on same APRA basis is equivalent to a return
period of 1 in 625 years.

C. Dividends

C.1 Dividend policy and distributable earnings

> The Group’s interim dividend of 12.0 cents per share represents a 1HOS payout ratio
of 54% of normalised profits. This brings the cumulative payout since hstlng to 62.8%
of reported profits pre-goodwill amortisation.

> The Group’s dividend policy remains unchanged with a target of sustainable dividend
growth using a payout ratio of 50-70% of normalised profits (which are calculated
before goodwill amortisation), with an interim : final split of approximately 45 : 55.

> The Group continues to target double digit growth in annual dividends going forward.
> The distributable earnings of the parent entity at 31 December 2004 were $594m.

C.2 Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends to ordinary shareholders Interim Final Total

Period 5 : - Cents ~ Cents Cents
FY2005
FY2004
FY2003
FY2002
FY2001
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D. Return on equity

Annualised return on equity
30.0%

28.0%
26.0%
24.0%
22.0%
20.0%
18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%

8.0%

6.0%

4.0%

2.0%

_ Average normalised 13.5%

= Average actual 11.6%

(2.0%)
4.0%)

FY01 CFYo2  EYE. . FYos ~ 1HO5

- mROE (Actual) attributable to ordinary shareholders |
‘ !ROE (annali§ed) attributable to ordinary shareholders

e :
LR BN

g

Note: Normalised calculation was based on two adjustments fo actual NPAT to ordinéry sharehalders:
1. Exclusion of non-recurring items, eg profit on sale of CiearView in FY04.
2. Shareholders’ fund retum adjusted to be equivalent to the daily average 10-year bond rate for the year, plus 4%.

» The annualised retumn on equity (ROE) to ordinary shareholders of 27.8% for 1H05
represents the highest level achieved in the Group's listed history, driven by the
combination of strong margins delivered in the insurance buemess and record- hlgh
performance in the Australian equity market in 1HO5.

» The Group’s target return on eqmty to ordinary sharehoiders over the cycle is a
minimum of 1.5 times WACC. The 1HO05 annualised ROE, both actual and
normalised, is above this target. However, it needs to be considered in terms of
cycles and the general insurance industry has experienced very favourable cyclical
conditions recently. Over the period since listing early in FY01, the Group’s average
reported ROE is 11.6% (normalised 13.5%). This is below 1.5 x WACC.

» However, the sustained improvement in ROE since listing is indicative of the
consistent improvement in the underlying business, which is supporting the increasing
return to shareholders necessary to cushion the impact of the volatility that occurs in
the market over the cycle.
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E. Sensitivity analysis

E.1 Investment market sensitivities

»  The following table indicates the impact of an immediate change in the market value of
equities and changes in interest rates on the Group’s net profit before tax at the
specific dates.

Sensitivity on NPBT
{\_s at e 30-Jun-04 31-_Dec-04

Investment sensitivities

Equity market values:
Australian equities
Listed property trusts
International equities

Interest rates
Investment returns

Outstanding claims

»  The duration of the fixed interest portfolio was effectively matched to the duration of
- the technical reserves as at 31 December 2004. The difference in the sensitivity
between interest rates and outstanding claims in the above table largely reflects the
accounting treatment of unearned premiums as a cash liability whereas the Group
generally invests on the basis of its uitimate expected economic duration.

»  Apart from the increase in the size of the business, sensitivity of investment returns
and claims reserves to movements in interest rates increased because of the increase
in the average duration of the liability portfolio.

»  The implementation of the Group’s surplus capital fund has reduced the exposure to
equities and increased interest rate leverage since balance date.

E.2 Operational sensitivities

» . This table indicates the effect of a 1% change in key elements of the insurance
operational performance on the Group’s annual profit before tax for the respective
periods. The sensitivities provided for 30 June 2004 and 31 December 2004 are
annualised.

Sensitivity on NPBT R Change in

As at . °  assumption
Insurance sensitivities L]
Loss ratio - short-tail
Loss ratio - long-tail
Underwriting expenses
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Appendix A — Strategy

The Group’s strategic goals are as follows:

Top quartile total shareholder return;
Return on equity of at least 1.5 times weighted average cost of capital;

>
>

> Establish an Asian foothold;

> Maintain an 80:20 mix of short-tail:long-tail premiums; and
>

Maintain a ‘AA" category rating.

The Group considers that these goals, when taken as a whole, are a fair representation of its
strategic direction and risk appetite for the foreseeable future. The goals following top
quartile total shareholder return (‘TSR’) should be regarded as inter-dependent components
supporting the delivery of top quartile TSR.

A.1 Top quartile shareholder return

Top quartile TSR (within the S&P/ASX100) remalns as the Group’s overall strategic goal. It
is recognlsed that this is a tough goal but is one the Group considers appropnate

A.2 ROE of at least 1.5 times WACC

The Group targets a return for ordlnary shareholders (ROE) that is at least 1.5 times the
Group weighted average cost of capltal ( WA(‘C) ' The return on the shareholders’ funds
portfolio will contlnue to be normahsed ln measunng perfonnance against this goal.

As at 30 June 2004,. the WACC was ‘assessed for this purpose as approximately 10%. The
WACC is sensitive to the assumptions. adopted for beta and equity risk premium and the
treatment adopted for lmputatlon credlts Therefore in” other, contexts, a quite different
'WACC could emerge and it wil, of course ﬂuctuate wrth movements in long-term interest
rates.

The Group believes that a normalised retum in excess of 1.6 times WACC is unlikely to be
sustainable. This is consistent with the Groups regularly publicised view that sustained
returns, in excess of what is needed to ensure that shareholders receive an adequate return
and continue to make capital available, are likely to result in increased competition and
-pricing pressure... Existing .competitors, new:entrants or consumer activism could drive this,
as general insurance is a necessary communlty product and needs to remain available and
affordable. o

A.3 Establish an Asian foothold

In view of the Group’s leading market shares in the largest general insurance revenue
streams in Australia and New Zealand, its acquisitive growth opportunities in these markets
are very limited. Accordingly, the Group began investigating offshore growth prospects and,
after extensive research, concluded that Asia currently provides the best fit for the Group to
focus on for a range of acquisitive growth opportunities.

Other geographical areas will continue to be reviewed for potential on a periodic basis.

The Group is very conscious of the additional risks posed by significant international
expansion beyond New Zealand. Extensive risk assessments are undertaken on each
opportunity that is considered as having potential for the Group.
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A.4 Maintain an 80:20 mix of short-tail:long-tail premiums

The goal of maintaining an 80:20 mix of short-tail:long-tail premiums is indicative of the
Group wishing to keep risks managed to a tolerable level.

Opportunities may arise at times that skew the mix of business away from this goal. If such
an event were to occur, the Group would increase its focus on executing other opportunities
to re-direct the mix back to the target within a reasonable timeframe.

The Group remains committed to delivering underwriting profits and achlevmg these is
inherent in the delivery of retums of at least 1.5 times WACC.

A.5 Maintain a "AA' category rating

The Group continues to consider that the conservative levels of capital dictated by targeting
‘AA’ category ratings are an appropriate reflection of the Group’s current risk appetite.

In determining the economic capital requirements of the Group, the modelling performed
takes into account the financial metrics used for ‘AA’ insurer financial strength ratings as well
as a risk of statutory insolvency of no more than 1-in-750 years and the metrics for
determining prudential solvency under APRA standards.

The Group’s key wholly-owned insurance operations currently hold ‘AA’ insurer financial
strength ratings (with ‘Stable’ outlook) from Standard & Poor's. These are currently the
highest ratings of any Australian-based financial institution.
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Appendix B - Key ASX Releases

This schedule contains only a summary of the announcements made to the ASX since

FY05 commenced.

It does not include announcements of changes in Directors’ interests.

Reference should be made to a copy of the ASX announcements should further
information be required. These are available on www.iag.com.au

17 February 2005

27 January 2005

11 January 2005

24 December 2004
10 December 2004
29 November 2004

29 November 2004

Speculation re Asian expansion

Following media speculation, IAG confirmed it had no update to
announce in respect of its Asian expansion plans. '
IAG issues shares on exercise of employee performance share
rights

IAG issued 923,000 ordinary shares on exercise of employee share
rights.

IAG issues 5.5m Reset‘ Exchangeable Securities

IAG announced that the offer of Reset Exchangeable Securities
(RES) closed oversubscribed on 7 January 2005. Over-
subscnptlons of $50 mslhon were accepted

5.5m RES were issusd | 5y 1AG Finance (New Zealand) Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary” of IAG, raising a total of $550m.

It was advised that RES would begin trading on a deferred
settlement basis on the ASX on 12 January 2005, with trading to
commence on a normal basis on 19 January 2005. The interest
rate for the first payment (to be made 15 March 2005) would be
4.69% per annum, fully franked.

IAG issues shares on exercise of emplcyee performance share
rights

IAG issued 63,800 ordinary shares on exercise of employee share
rights.

IAG issues replacement prospectus - Reset Exchangeable
Securities

Main update was to include the margin of 120 bpts over the 90 day
BBSW.

Initial Margin Confirmed for Reset Exchangeable Securities

IAG announced that the initial margin for the offer of Reset
Exchangeable Securities (RES) was set at 1.20%, with the offer
scheduled to open on 30 November 2004.

IAG issues shares on exercise of employee performance share
rights

IAG issued 212,500 ordin‘ary shares on exercise of employee share
rights.
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22 November 2004

10 November 2004

10 November 2004

IAG announced issue of Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES)

IAG announced the proposed issue of A$500m (with capacity to
accept an additional A$50m) Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES)
as a part of the Group’s commitment to actively manage and
enhance its capital structure. RES would deliver secure contingent
access to Tier 1 capital and allow a release of capital into
operations and/or to shareholders.

It was advised that RES would be quoted on the ASX and assigned
an ‘A-* credit rating by S&P. RES holders would be entitied to
receive non-cumulative, franked, quarterly, floating-rate interest
payments. The interest payments would be dependent on the
performance of the underlying ‘AAAf S&P rated portfolio of high
quality, short-dated, fixed-interest securities and subject to certain
payment tests. The interest rate for RES would be set at a margin

- of 1.0-1.3% over the 90 day BBSW and adjusted for franking. RES

would be heid off-balance sheet for IAG Group reporting.
IAG released results of Annual General Meeting

IAG confirmed that Ms Dominique Fisher and Ms Anne Keatmg
retired as directors of IAG at the conclusion of the company’s AGM
in line with the Group's tenure policy for non-executive directors. It
was also confirmed that Ms Yasmin Allen and Mr Brian Schwartz
were elected as directors of IAG. Ms Allen took office immediately
and Mr Schwartz s appomtment was effective 1 January 2005.

IAG conf‘ rms busmess momentum and faunches its first
Sustainability Report at its AGM

IAG confirmed ‘that during the first three months of the current

oo nancial year ‘the Group’s policy growth was strong, customer

9 November 2004

28 October 2004

6 October 2004

retention and satisfaction remained high, and the Group remained
on track to achieve key targets for the full year.

B IAG launched the Group's first Sustainability Report during the

AGM. The Sustainability Report details the Group’s performance in
relation to a number of indicators, including IAG'’s efforts to reduce
insurable risks most common to its customers and to reduce its
environmental |mpact

Dividends payable on Reset Preference Shares

The: Board of IAG declared fully franked dividends in respect of
IAGPA and IAGPB. The record date was 29 November 2004 and

Payment date was 15 December 2004.

The IAGPA dividend rate per annum was 5.80%, with $2.9079
payable per $100 share.

The IAGPB dividend rate per annum was 4.51%, with $2.2612
payable per $100 share.

IAG issues shares on exercise of employee performance share

_rights

IAG issued 63,700 ordinary shares on exercise of employee share
rights.

IAG denies merger proposal with QBE Insurance

IAG announced that there was no merger proposal between itself
and QBE Insurance following speculation in the media.
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5 October 2004

30 September 2004

29 September 2004
31 August 2004
27 August 2004

19 August 2004

27 July 2004

.20 July 2004

15 July 2004

8 July 2004

Pricing of shares to be allocated under Dividend Reinvestment

‘Plan (DRP)

IAG advised that ordinary shares to be allocated under the
company’'s DRP would be priced at $5.2047 per share for the 2004
final dividend. Under the DRP, around 12.07 million ordinary shares
were allocated to participating shareholders.

2004 Annual Report and notice of Annual General Meeting
released to the market

IAG issues shares on exercise of employee performance share

rights
IAG issued 65,000 ordinary shares on exercise of employee share
rights.

IAG issues shares on exercise of employee performance share
rights

IAG issued 15, 000 ordlnary shares on exercise of employee share

nghts

IAG issues shares on exermse of employee performance share

'nghts :
| IAG |ssued 610 140 ordlnary shares on exercise of employee share -
‘nghts ‘

__ Announcement of annual results — 30 June 2004 and
.declaration of -a fuN,' franked fina! dividend of 14.0 cents per

ordinary share payable on 18 October 2004.

IAG issues shares on exerCIse of employee performance share
nghts

IAG issued 1,080, 000 ordlnary shares on exercise of employee
share nghts

IAG re-orgamses Austrahan insurance business along
customer lines

IAG announced -'a new- structure for its Australian insurance
operations -more closely’ aligned to its core products — personal
insurance and commercial classes.

IAG settles with US insurer following successful arbitration

IAG accepted a settlement that will involve the Group receiving
payment of US$25m. The settiement approximates the amount
carried in the Group's accounts and had no material impact on the
Group's profit for the six months ended 30 June 2004.

Variation to Dividend Reinvestment Plan

With effect from 15 September 2004, the issue price of DRP shares
will be calculated to 4 decima’l places.
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8 July 2004 Closing Date for Receipt of Nominations for Election of
Directors at the 2004 Annual General Meeting

IAG has been granted a waiver from Listing Rule 14.3. As such,
the closing date for receipt of nominations for election as directors
at the 2004 Annual General Meeting will be 6 September 2004.

8 July 2004 IAG confirms small acquisition in New Zealand

"~ IAG confirmed that one of its New Zealand subsidiaries has

acquired a 50% stake in Mike Henry Travel Insurance Limited
(‘MHTT).
IAG noted its intention to take over the underwriting of travel
insurance policies issued by MHTI with effect from the final quarter
of the 2004 calendar year. This acquisition is not significant to the
results or financial position of IAG. '
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Share Price Trends & Top 20 Registered Holdings

A

B.

Performance of IAG ordinary share price relative to benchmark indices

IAG Share Price Performance

Share price
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The first issue reset preference shares (JAGPA) listed on 5 June 2002. The shares
are expected to pay a six-monthly fully franked dividend, currently fixed at 5.80% per
annum.

The second issue of reset preference shares (IAGPB) listed on 23 June 2003. They
are expected to pay a six-monthly fully franked dividend, currently fixed at 4.51% per
annum.

The performance of the IAGPA and IAGPB share prices can be expected to be more
directly influenced by the interest rate environment than the performance of IAG’s
business or the equity markets and the timing of payment of dividends.

The NRMAO7 spread to swap represents the ‘10 non call 5' year domestic
subordinated note issued in November 2002 and maturing on 28 November 2012.
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C. Ordinary Shareholders (IAG) as at 31 December 2064

. . # % ofIssued
Rank Investor N Shares

JP MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED
WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED -
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 2.07
QUEENSLAND INVESTMENT CORPORATION C/- NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 1.39
ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 1.20
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFS WSLE GEARED SHR FND A/C) 1.16
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFS WSLE IMPUTATION FND A/C) 1.02
COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 0.99
WESTPAC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED C/- WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 0.92
AMP LIFE LIMITED 0.81
1 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFS IMPUTATION FUND A/C) 0.66
2 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFS WSLE AUST SHARE FND A/C) 0.65
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFS WSLE INDUSTRIAL SHR A/C) 0.55
RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (BKCUST A/C) 0.45
OOF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED ) 0.42
GOVERNMENT SUPERANNUATION OFFICE (STATE SUPER FUND A/C) 0.38
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 0.34
AG SHARE PLAN NOMINEE PTY LTD (PAR AUSTRALIA A/C) 0.33
RGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED 0.29

D. Reset Preference (IAGPA) Shareholders as at 31 December 2004

. # % oflssued
Rank Investor : Capital

%‘J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 99; 14.68
% NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED : | 7.55
ESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 7.43

< AMP LIFE LIMITED 4.04
CITIBANK LIMITED 3.29
ITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 323

# RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (JBENIP A/C) 3.21
{ COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (SMP ACCOUNTS) 2.31
[NET NOMINEES LIMITED C/- WESTPAC SECURITIES LIMITED 1.08
HARE DIRECT NOMINEES PTY LTD (NATIONAL NOMINEES A/C) 1.43
ERPETUAL TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED 1.14
BS PRIVATE CLIENTS AUSTRALIA 1.01

1 ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED 0.88
{CAMBOOYA PTY LIMITED 0.88
1ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 0.81
BS NOMINEES PTY LTD (PRIME BROKING A/C) 0.69
{BRENCORP NO 11 PTY LIMITED 0.64
: ANZ EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED C/- ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 0.63
: CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CMIL CWLTH INCOME FUND A/C) 0.57
! CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFSIL CWLTH SPEC 5 A/C) 0.49
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E. Reset Preference (IAGPB) Shareholders as at 31 December 2004

# % of Issued

Capital

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 12.45
HARE DIRECT NOMINEES PTY LTD (NATIONAL NOMINEES A/C) 7.50
MP LIFE LIMITED 6.89
COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (SMP ACCOUNTS) 6.42
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 352
NET NOMINEES LIMITED C/- WESTPAC SECURITIES LIMITED 3.47
PERPETUAL TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED 3.36
ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 276
2 UBS NOMINEES PTY LTD (PRIME BROKING A/C) 2.45
5 ANZ EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED C/- ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 223
B WERE CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 159
1 UBS PRIVATE CLIENTS AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD 1.45
I MRS FAY CLEO MARTIN-WEBE 1.00
ITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED (CFSIL CWLTH SPEC 5 AC) 1.00
0.98
g WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 0.83
RENCORP NO 11 PTY LIMITED 2 0.80
" FORT!S CLEARING NOMINEES P/L (SETTLEMENT A/C) - 0.55
"l UNIVERSITY OF CANBERRA : 0.50
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Michael Hawker, Chief Executive Officer
George Venardos, Chief Financial Officer
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Good morning. Welcome to the Insurance Australig Group 1HOS results

briefing.
Copies of all the materials we are using here this morning are already on our

website.
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Operating conditions & results

Dividends

Segmental analysis

Reducing risk in the business

ROE and operating outlook
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Momentum continues in 1H05 L‘%
IAG

insurance

Net profit increased to $446m Ao

Strong underlying performance and robust trading conditions
which underpinned. -

— Revenue (NEP) growth of 6.8% since 1H04

~ Insurance margin increase to 16.7%, with increases in
each business segment

.

* Insurance earnings grew faster than premiums
Lower claims frequency/costs

Continued high retention

Synergy benefits flowing to the bottom line

Absence of major losses and savings in operational costs

Record earnings on shareholders’ funds of $287m (pre-tax)

P . N AR ! Austrafia Group Limbted
nEDA scio saic @ LA N4 it

]
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* I'm pleased to be able to report a profit of $446m for the half-year to December 2004.
This is based on a strong performance by our operations and record earnings on
shareholders’ funds. .

» Good economic conditions in both Australia and New Zealand certainly bolstered our
result, but the key to delivering sustainable, quality returns has been our ability to
leverage our scale and diversify our general insurance portfolio.

* Our revenue grew by close to 7% over the year — and 5.4% in the last six months.

» A pleasing aspect of our result is that we've improved our margin and grown earnings
faster than premiums, which is positive for both shareholders and our customers.

* Following completion of the integration programme last year, the synergy benefits to
which we committed are now flowing through to the bottom line and we’re now focused
on ensuring we continue to deliver improvements.

* This period’s result was also assisted by no major losses (catastrophés).

» Margins improved across all operating areas, enabling us to achieve a record Group
margin of 16.7%, up from 11.8% in the previous corresponding period. This is a strong
improvement reflecting current conditions. However, it does not change our guidance
of 9-12% for the longer term. This reflects our belief that an insurance company’s

~ performance needs to be viewed over the long term. In fact, if you look at the average
of our half-yearly insurance margins since listing in 2000 (including this result), it is
11.4%, which is within our long term guidance range.

* We were also pleasantly surprised by the performance of the equity markets, which
helped us generate a new record return on our shareholders’ funds. The result
includes $287m in pre-tax returns on shareholders’ funds, up from $204m achieved in
the same period last year.




Sustained financial strength (L%
« Annualised ROE for ordinary shareholders increased e
— Reported 27.8% (1HO04: 18.4%)
— Normalised 19.5% (1H04: 14.5%)
— Exceeds long-term target of 1.5x WACC
* Average ROE for the four and half years since listing
— Reported 11.6%
— Normalised 13.5%
» Very strong capital position
~ Healthy cash flows - net cash from operations of $431m -
— Paid $238m in dividends to shareholders in 1H05
— Group MCR multiple of 1 85x at December 2004
+ All key wholly-owned insurers haveTetamed '‘AA' (Outlook Stable)
S&P ratings
N scio saic @ B ggm WA R

* The annualised return on equsty (ROF) to ordlnary shareholders of 27.8% for
1HOS5 represents the highest leve! achieved in the Group’s listed history driven
by the combination of strong margins delivered in the insurance business and
solid investment returns on shareholders’ funds benefiting from record-high
performance in the equity market in 1HOS. '

« The Group’s target return on equnty to ordinary shareholders over the cycle is
a minimum of 1.5 times WACC. The 1H05 annualised ROE, both actual and
normalised, is above thAis target. However, it needs to be considered in terms
of cycles and the general insurance industry has experienced very favourable
cyclical conditions recently. Over the period since listing early in FYO1, the
Group’s average reported ROE is 11.6% (normalised 13.5%). This is still
below 1.5x WACC.

» However, the sustained improvement in ROE since iisting is indicative of the
consistent improvement in the underlying business, which is supporting the
increasing return to shareholders necessary to cushion the impact of the
volatility that occurs in the insurance and investment markets over cycles.

» The Group financial position continues to generate healthy cash flows of
$431m for the period.

» We paid $238m in dividends during the period.

« The MCR of 1.85x is up from 1.75x at June 2004 and continues to exceed the
group’s current benchmark of 1.55x MCR.

« The Group’s performance, franchise and risk appetite have continued to

support the retention of ‘AA’ category insurer financial strength ratings for all
the key wholly-owned insurers in the Group.




Interim dividend increased by 50% (l%
| 1AG

{nsurance

Austratia
0.0 Group

b7 1
25.0 <
b4
20.0 %
£ 150 2
© ¥

g T o wd.s.-,_&m

1HO1 1H02 1HO3 - 1HD4 1HOS

N Interim dividend ' -~ - 7~ BEPS
Continued improvement in interirm dividénds — supported by increased EPS
|m‘mAmhewrmw

» WA
NEMA sGio saic cau 8.,“ IH  ABN 69,000 739 823

INSURANCE

5

* The Group has |ncreased d|v1dends per share each year — more than
doubllng the payout since hstmg ' As-can be séen from this chart, the first three
years’ interim dividends were supported by the accumulated wealth of the
business with dividends’ exceedmg eammgs per share (‘EPS’ ). Inthe last two
years, the situation has reversed and earnlngs have been rebuut

* Following another strong result and supported by the Group s balance sheet
strength, we have been able to mcrease the interim dividend by 50% to 12 cps
(1HO04: 8.0) for the penod This represents a payout ratio of 54% of
normalised earnlngs

* This is at the lower end of the Group s pohcy range of 50 — 70% of
normalised earnings.

* The Group’s dividend pollcy remains unchanged with a target of sustainable
dividend growth using a payout ratio of 50-70% of normalised profits (before
goodwill amortisation), with an. mtenm f nal spht of approximately 45 : 565.

* The Group continues to target double dlgrt growth in annual dividends going
forward.



Contributions to profit before tax L’ﬂ/

Components of IAG EBITDA (excl OEl) lAG
900 $792m ln‘suran_ce
$718m Australia
800 559 Group
700 $559m ;
600
500 $263m
E 400
2 300 9
200
100 281
(100) (27) (21) (13)
(200)
2H03 1HO4 2H04 1HOS

8 Insurance resuft o Investnent retum on shareholder funds W Non-insurance mergin® 2 Non-recurring items

*Nor-insurance margin inchudes net carparate expensas, NSW Insurance protection tax. Finencial servces resid (discontinued 41/04), fee based
businesses.

* Increased earnings driven by combination of
— Sustained improvement in insurance operations
— Realisation of synergies from CGU/NZI acquisitions
— Increased investment retumns on shareholders’ funds

insurance Australia Group Limited
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» Turning now to the sources of the GFOUp’s profit before interest, tax and
amortisation.

* The dark blue bar is the profit from our core operations — the insurance profit.
It includes the underwriting profit and the investment return on the funds we
invest to back our insurance liabilities. The growth in this is attributable to a
combination of the growth in the size of the business and improved margins.

* The grey bar is the return from shareholders’ funds. This is the most volatile
element of the results and the reason we focus on normalised earnings when
assessing the longer term performance and dividends.

* The light blue bar is for non-recurring items and, in 2H04, represented the
profit from the sale of our ClearV|ew operatlons .

* The pink bar is for other operatlng ltems such as fee based busmesses and

corporate expenses. Previously this included the results of the ClearView
business. This element is now at historically low levels.
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* This slide shows the trend in the i insurance margin and its components.

- The administration ratio is back close fo 17% after the ‘blip in 2H04. _
Excluding the affect of fire services levies (ie deducting the expense from
premiums and expenses) the 1HOS ratlo drops to 14.8% compared to 15.7%
in 2HO4.

* The loss ratio increased slightly to 66.5%», altheugh this comes back to 64.4%
when the affect of reduced discount rates are excluded. This is an
improvement on 65.4% in 2HO4 stated on the same basis.

* The reported combined ratio is also impected by the same 2.1% for discount
rates. On an immunised basis, the comblned ratio has |mproved for the third
consecutive half-year.”

* The contribution of the grthh in the size of our operations can be seen by
noting that the 16.1% insurance margin for 1HO3 generated an insurance profit
of $290m while 16.7% in 1HOS5 has g'enereted'an insurance profit of $518m.

 The average half-yearly margin since we listed is 11.4%, which is in line with
our current expectation of operating within a 9 — 12% range over the long term
for our current mix of business.



Record equity market performance ‘l’)
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Technical reserves
Shareholders funds

Total investmentincome
*Returns are annuafised

* The 1HO05 technical reserves return of 4.05% (8.1% annualised)
includes active retumn of 26 basis points

* The 1HO5 return on shareholders’ funds of 11.7% (23.4%
annualised) includes active retumn of 29 basis points

— Return reflects mix of Aus_tralian equities (+1 7.9%),
international equities {-1.8%), fixed interest (3.9%) and
cash (3.5%)
+ The overall return of 6.2% (12.4% annualised) includes active
return of 27 basis points or 9pproxumately $26m (pre-tax)

A e Group Limited
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* The combination of the markets and our aséet manageré confinued to deliver
for us with active returns of approximately $26m over the relevant indices.

» The technical ressrves return of $263m includes the gains on bonds as
interest rates declined during the period and offsets the $65m expense borne
in the combined ratio for reduced discount rates.

* The shareholders’ funds retum includes a small loss on our mternatlonal
equities portfollo as the gains in the indices were more than offset by the loss
in value in Australian dollar terms due to the increased exchange rate against
the relevant international currencies. However, the overall return from
shareholders’ funds remained at record levels — 23.4% annualised — due to the
rise in the local Australian equity market.




Financial results overview 4 ’%

insurance
Half-year Half-year _Half-year Austratia
Financial results/ratios: « .. ended Group
- ' )

i . i De
Net eamed premium (A$m)
Insurance profit (A$m)
Shareholders’ funds investment income (A$m) -
Profit before income tax & OEi (A$m)
Reported NPAT (A$m)
Net cash flow from operations (A$m)
Reported ROE % to ordinary shareholders
Normalised ROE % to ordinary shareholders
Basic EPS (cents)
Dividends per ordinary share
Group insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio

Administration expense ratio
Commission ratio

Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)
Consolidated MCR multiple
Australian insurance operations MCR multiple
Minimum probability of suff'c:ency of
claims reserves -
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» This slide brings together much of the information | have been discussing on
the previous slides so there' are only a few«f" gures here i would like to highlight:

- Net cash flow from operatlons of $431m is lower than the previous

~two periods. - This is mainly due to paying tax of almost $200m more
than in the same period last'year. A secondary factor is the loss of net
cash flows from the ClearView operations following the sale of that
business in January 2004,

- - The 50% growth in interim dividends per ordinary share — the 14 cents
per share is a final dividend — our policy is that final dividends are
normally Iarger.than the interim dividend,; '

- An increase in the commission ratio — to which George will refer later;
and ' '

- The increase in our Group MCR multiple — which has been achieved
while still maintaining our standard of a minimum probability of
sufficiency on outstanding claims of 90%

» The final figure I'd like to highlight is the revenue growth — which for the three
periods shown on this slide is wholly organic. See next slide



Delivering organic growth w
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* Gross written premium increased by 1.3% on 2H04 Lo
~ Compares with 4.5% for the previous six months

* Net eamed premium increased by 5.4% on 2H04
— Compares with 1.4% for the previous six months

» Each segment delivered sales growth (ie volume), which
remains key to sustained top line growth

— Improved customer service promoting strong renewal rates
— Portfolio mix improving
— Focus on increased segmentation and marketing

Achieved against a backdrop of moderate increases or
decreases in premium rates -

, e Insurance Australia Group Limited
: 5Gjio ic \ceu X, vy N4 ABN 60 090 790 923
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* Growth in gross written premlum (GWP) over the Iast year has been 5.9%.
This includes 1.3% in the last six.-months and 5.4% in the six months to 30

June 2004.

* As noted earlier, revenue (NEP) grew by 6.8% compared with a year ago.
Most of this occurred in the most. recent six months which increased 5.4%
compared with an increase of 1.3% in the prevnous six months.

. Each segment delivered sales (ie volume) growth and this growth in the
value of risks we are insuring is driving the increase in premium.

* Sales growth remains key to sustalmng top line growth. We continue to
invest in opportunities to improve customer service to sustain the high
retention rates we are achieving.

* We are also very pleased with thve"mif(' of business béing written and are
using our understanding of risk to further our product and marketing
segmentation to entrench our current customers and attract others.

* This revenue growth has been achieved against a backdrop of of moderate

" increases or decreases in premium rates. The rate climate is being driven by
the savings made in claims costs, competitive dynamics and the international
commercial cycles. Each part of our business is experiencing this to a greater
or lesser extent. However, as noted, we are maintaining and improving

~ margins so it is still a win:win for customers and shareholders.

* The following slide provides tangible evidence of the customer benefits.
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Premiums more affordable | (l)

Affordability of NRMA Car Insurance (NSW) l"\ﬁag
IR At Pram | et Woekly Earranga ) Australia
% Group
- In late 2004, NSW motor

premiums averaged 58% of
AWE
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CTP NSW AFFORDABILITY INDEX

In late 2004, NSW CTP
benchmark premium was
34% of AWE

Combined, there has been a

12% drop relative to AWE
) N Quarter endln noe " im
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« The detail on this slide isn't visible on the screen but the messages are — the
two graphs show annuali prem:ums in New South Wales as a percentage of
“average weekly earnings (‘AWE') over Close to five years from December
1999.

* The upper graph is average motcr premiums in our porifclio.

* The lower graph |s for the benchmark CTP premium — ie the Sydney Best
Metro rate. N _

» The downward direction represents increasing affordability.

* By late 2004, it took only 92% of a week’s earnings (as measured by AWE) to

renew both motor and CTP. This compares with 104% five years earlier — so
there has been a reduction of 12% in real terms.

* There have also been savings for customers buying liability insurance — the
Australian Competition and Consumer Commission (‘ACCC’) announced last
week that industry public liability premiums fell, on average, by 15% in the six
months to June 2004 and noted that this reverses the pattern of premium
increases since 2000. Professional lndemmty mdustry premiums have fallen,
on average, by 17% over the same perlod

1



~ Customers and people positive (‘/L/

Claim satisfaction trends insurance
100%. motor and home (direct channef) éustraﬁa
roup
wn Engagement of our people
o 1AG 2
IAG 2003 (45%) 004 (53%)
85% .
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Avecags month compleints va Policies in force 0% 100%
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: people are are all positive indicators
't  for sustained performance
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« As well as delivering in financial terms; improvements in key customer and
people indicators are also being 'réalis‘ed.f

* Our customer satisfaction measures.are improving. The charts on the left
here are two measures of this.. The top one shows the upward trend in the
percentage of our claimants for directly distributed motor and home insurance
are satisfied with their experience. The lower one shows, for the same
business, the absolute numbers of complaints in the blue bars and line shows
the growth in policies in force. The performance in December 2004 translates
to about one complaint per 6,500 policies (0.015%).

» The chart on the right is employee engagement. Between 2003 and 2004,
IAG has moved from the bottom of the stable zone (45%) to well into the stable
zone (63%). Companies with highly engaged employees are strongly
correlated with high performing companies. We have achieved a lot already
and are working to achieve more.
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Ongoing focus delivering results ()/}

Sustained improvement in margins All business segments contributing lAG
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* In summary, this penod s results are a testament to our decisions to provide
our Australia and New Zealand bUSmesses wnth true scaie in these markets
through the acquisition of CGU and NZI and to ihen focus on ensuring we are
positioned to deliver sustained quality resuits. -

* The insurance margin is very strong at 16.7%. ) -

< All segments of the business have improved their contnbution to the
insurance profit of $518m for 1H05. George Venardos will provide more detail
on the individual segments shomy

» Customer retention remains very high reflecting the their understanding of the
value, price and service which we provide.

« We have sustained capital strength comfortably above our benchmark
muttiple of MCR — which was reduced from 1.60x to 1.55x following our recent
issue of contingent capital.

« We have maintained insurance at fair rates for customers, delivered over
50% in total shareholder returns (‘TSR’) to our shareholders and maintained
our very strong financial strength to comfortably withstand major catastrophes.

« | will now hand over to George to take you through some more detail on the
segment results and our capital position. When George is through | will
provide a concluding slide and then we will both take questions.



Segment analysis
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Australian personal lines t’%
IAG

Half-year Half-year Half-year Insurance

Australian Personal Lines ended ended ended e

Gross written premium
Net premium revenue
Underwriting profit
Insurance profit

Loss ratio

Expense ratio
Administration ratio
Commission ratjo

Combined ratio

Insurance margin (before tax)

« Sustained margins supported by strong retention rates and
control of average claims costs

* Growth in volume driving growth as customer benefit from
reducing premiums rates

oy . . Insurance Austrafia Group Limited
nNemAa scio saic \ceu i, e N ABN 60 090 739 823 :
& & e G i
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+The Australian Personal Lines portfolio comprises Motor, CTP, Home and lifestyle products such as
boat and caravan. The division continues to deliver strong insurance marglns dominated by the
perfomance of the Motoring (both property and liability) classes. ‘

+ The premium growth of 4.3% from the same period last year was due to, in equal proportion, premium
rates and palicies in force. Following the consolidation of the industry in the last few years we have
seen a more stable, rationally priced market. We are well placed competitively due to our brand
strength, customer service, operational efficiency and scale advantage.

+» As the benefits of our claims initiatives, which we have previously. communicated, flow through
together with improved driving behaviour (better drivers, better cars, better roads and improved safety
awareness and policing) are emerging, we haven’t needed to increase premiums at the same rate of
parts and labour inflation. In fact, in our largest portfolio of NSW Motor, average premiums have
reduced since December 2003 and in NSW CTP, our market share has increased with average
premiums also reducing.

« With regard to volumes on a national average, our renewal rates and new business volumes are very
stable. We are seeing strong growth in policies in the markets where we are targeting growth, such as
Queensland Motor and Home (over 6% growth in risks in-force in these classes). As the market leader
in most regions, we are very conscious of holding market share at the same time as ensuring we keep

the balance of risk in our portfolio.

« Despite the strong resuit, there are still a number of challenges and opportunities for the division. The
CTP releases are slowing down. This is expected. The scheme reforms introduced in October 1999
have ensured stability, however the releases from reserves for the pre October 1999 claims are
naturally abating as each year passes.

* We are still well placed in the Personal Lines Division as we still see opportunities in the Home
portfolio to continue to roll out our supply management initiatives. We currently have a 72%
penetration rate for the Home procurement model — some regions are above 90%.

sThe CGU Personal Lines portfolios are fully integrated with IAG and we are seeing the benefits of risk
selection, underwriting and supply chain management flowing through.

» We are fully committed to improve the customer experience by simplifying the processes in the
telephone and branch networks; simplified national policy booklets and flexible policy options.

* The key competitive advantage of the division is scale benefits and we will use this advantage
responsibly to maintain our margins. By improving processes and aligning our Personal Lines
business units to the customer needs, the improved cost management will off-set any potential
downwards pressure on premium rates.

15



Australian commercial lines ,’2

. | Half-year Half-year Half-year| Insurance
Australian Commercial Lines ended ended ended éfgfjg“a

Dec-03  June-04 )
ASm

Gross written premium
Net premium revenue
Underwriting profit
Insurance profit
Profit from fee based business
Total commercial line result
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Administration ratio
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)

N insurance Australia Group Limited
Né‘l\jﬂ-\ sGjo  gGic @ &‘ G‘Yﬂ;’.‘m N4 . ABN 60 090 730 923 “

INSURANCE

-The Commercial Lines portfollo represents the commercial property rural and marine
classes (65% of the portfolio) and the long tail classes of workers’ compensation
(10%), liability and professional mdemmty (25%). 7

«The strong insurance margins (which includes the increasing of liability claims in
respect of asbestos) were matched by the growth in revenue. The growth has been
attributed to an increase in policies of over 5%, premium rates not softening in the
SME market as early as may have been anticipated and higher than expected
retention rates.

* Over the last year we have targeted selected growth in the public habllrty and
professional indemnity portfolios in anticipation of the success of the tort reforms
(including a 25% growth in professional indemnity rlsks) All indications aré that these
reforms have kicked in with claims cost, beginning to fall. ‘

» The WA workers’ compensation scheme has new legislation which increased
benefits to claimants. We have already increased rates to pick up the shortfall as well
as adjusting reserves for the affected claimants.

* The outlook on premium rates is not definitive, aithough we expect to see some

pressure on rates and softening in the market more generaily. Our philosophy remains

unchanged and that is, we will walk away if we can’t achieve our technical price.

*» We will continue to__focuspn the SME market as well as appropriate growth
opportunities in the long tail classes.

* Consistent with other areas of the business, we are developing a number of
customer focused initiatives, such as relaunching our business package policy and

enhancing our e-business platform.” We are also moving towards rationalisation of our.
workers’ compensation systems from 3 to 1. Simplifying theses processes as well as -

improving our back-end receipting and recordmg processes should see cost savings
which will- help maintain our margins:
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International performance w
l IAG

) Half-year Half—year Half-year Insurance
International operations “ended - ‘ended éndeg Austisia
Jun-04 Dec-04

Gross written premium
Net premium revenue
Underwriting profit
Insurance profit
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Administration ratio
Commission ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin (before tax)

+ Benefited from absence of catastrophes during the period

« Delivery of integration benefits assisted in reducing
administration costs

17
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» The international segment consists of the New ZeaIand busnness and the Group s
Captive remsurer IAG Re.* o ;

* The headline growth of nearly 10% from the same penod Iast year is distorted by the
strengthening of the New Zealand dollar over the year On a local currency basis the
growth was'4. 2%. - T

*The pohcres in force have remamed_constant:over the Iast year althouqh the mix of
business within the’ major portfolros has improved havmg analysed the combined IAG
and NZ| risks following the portfolio’s integration.

* Whilst IAG New Zealand is the leading insurer, we are actively pursuing acquisitions
of smaller, specralrst undenerters of products where we are under represented.

* The NZI integration has been completed and customer satrsfactron levels are above
our targets, reaching a new high of 83% in December 2004,

* In November we made the decision to move the New.Zealand personal lines
business onto the Australian systems in the next 12 to 18 months, which should
improve all aspects of customer service, data quality, underwriting and segmentation.
The basis for this decision was to leverage scale, manage costs and capture the
significant synergies that should come from mtroducrng the rich functionality in the
proprietary personal lines systems whose sophlstlcatron has been significantly
enhanced over the last f ive years.

* The administration ratro of 16% for 1HOS is in Irne wrth expectations for this business
going forward.

« The commission ratio in New Zealand rncreased durrng 1HO05. The extent of the
profits on some business generated higher profit commissions and consolidation of
brokers and consequent changes in servicing also led to increases. The business
monitors these developments to ensure that higher commission is linked to greater -
value delivery to customers and the business.

*The Captive's result for the six month reflects the absence of any catastrophes in the
period. Further, the storms on February 2™ and 3™ 2005, will have minimal impact to
our overall result.
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Reducing risk in the business Y
IAG
G
* Investment risk
— Introduction of new classes, styles and managers
— Surplus capital fund established
» Improved reinsurance protections
» MCR and contingent capital
B scio saic @ CEEN N4 et

* The process of introducing greater diversification into the strategnc asset
allocation for shareholders’ funds continued during 1HO5:

-A second style was introduced for internally managed Australian equities.
This ‘research style’ targets a higher active return and tracking error. At
31 December 2004, $100m was invested in this fund; and

- Two external Australian equities managers were appointed and funded.
They currently manage about $240m (c 8%) of the shareholder fund
assets

» All international equity holdings continue to be managed externally.

* We have introduced a surplus capital fund within the shareholders’ funds.
This fund, which will have a minimum of 80% in cash and fixed interest
investments, is intended for the funds above the Group’s benchmark MCR
multiple of 1.55x. This recognises that these funds are expected to be used to
fund dividends, tax payments, acquisitions and buy-backs. This approach
should reduce the disruption to the ongoing investment process which required
continual rebalancing and adjustment to address funding required for
corporate actions. _

* Going forward, we intend to examine opportunities to further diversify our

asset allocation and to add new external managers to diversify the ‘alpha’ in
our portfolios. .
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Reinsurance protections increased )
IAG

nsurance
* Catastrophe event protection increased to $3.5bn from $3.0bn  just
« Maximum event retention remains at $100m

— Represents a reduction in volatility when measured
against premium base

- Retention for a second event is $75m
* Reinsurer counterparty credit profile remains very strong
— 70% of catastrophe programme provided by ‘AAATAA’
rated reinsurers (previously 66%) .

— Some of the programmz is ‘collateralised’ providing further
comfort

Pt , . e tnsurance Austiai Group Limied
NEMA sGjO  sgic @ s - @ N ABN 60 000 730 023 .

uuuuuuuuuu

In the rene\,\.al of our catastrophe prr*c amme on 1 Januarv 2005 we .
increased the per event-limit to $3.5b (previously $3. Obn) reﬂectmg growth in .
exposure during the last 12 months

The retained loss (APRA Maximum Event Retention Concentration Risk
Capital Charge) for a first event remains at $100m dropplng to $75m fora
second event.

This amount, wh'ch equates to about 1. 5% of net eamed premlum |s well
within the Group’s current tolerable limit for income statement volatmty from a
single event of 2% 6f net-earned premium.

~ Reinsurer counterparty credit profile remains very strong with 70% of limit now
provided by ‘AAA’/'AA’ rated reinsurers (previously 66%).

Some of the limit is now purchased on a ‘collateralised’ basis, where reinsurers
have deposited funds equivalent to their participation in a trust fund.
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Group MCR coverage remains strong U
IAG

Insurance
Australia

2.50x
w
g 2.00x 1.62x
Py -
2 1.50x
i
=]
=
% 1.00x
=
Q
3
g 0.50x
(L]
0.00x
2HO03 1HO04 2H04 1HO5
B T1 Non-hybrid capitad® Hybridi! T2 B RES
NEMA SGjO  SGic @ &\Nm N4 | L'?u"é”o&?;réfmu"“:‘

INBLURANTE

This graph shows the ‘composition of our caplta| base by reference to the
minimum capital requnrements (‘MCR" ) of’ the Group. This MCR is calculated
applying APRA principles to the’ consolldated balance sheet. There are, as
yet, no APRA standards by which oapltal reqwrements are’set for groups.

The core Tier 1 capltal effectlvely covers'the MCR. ‘The- surplus above that to
meet our benchmark muitiple of 1.55x' MCR is provided by @ mixture of Tier 1
hybrid capital and Tier 2 subordinated debt.

The two reset preference share i ISSUGS‘ qualify as Tier 1 'because of the terms
under which we can convert them to ordinary shares and the dividend payment
conditions. This ensures that they are available to meet solvency capital if
required. :

For illustrative purposes only, we have included the RES on this chart to show
the value of this contingent capital in-terms of its capacity to supplement the
Group’s regulatory capital base if we were to call upon it, remembering that the
company has an ongoing right to exchange this debt security into Tier 1 capital
atany time.

It is the access to this contingent capital which enabled the Group to reduce its
benchmark multiple of MCR to 1.55x — the RES effectively replaces that
element of our economic capital which represents the time it would take to
raise capital if required.

It is also worth noting that these funds are not earmarked for use in
acquisitions or buy-backs and while it’s in place it is expected to contribute at
least $2m to profit before tax. '
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Return on equity
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~ Return on equity improved w

Annualised return on equity lAG

30.0% Insurance
28.0% Australia
26.0% Group
24.0%
22.0%
20.0%
18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%

- Average normatised 13.5%
~ Average actuai 11.6%

(2.0%) &
(4.0%) =
FYo1 FY02 FY03 FY0o4 1H05

a1 ROE (Actual) attnibutable to ordinary sharehoiders
# ROE (Nomalised) attributable to ardinary shareholders

Note: Normalised calculation was based on two adjustments to actual NPAT to ordinary sharehoiders:
1. Exclusion of goodwill amortisation and non-recurring items
2. Shareholders' fund return adjusted to be equivalent to the daily average 10-year bond rate for the year,

plus 4% B
R B v insurance Australia Group Limited
NEMA SGiO  SaiC @ E-\ P N4 ABN 80000 730823
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*» The strong performance of equity markets in both 2H04 and 1H05 have
driven the reported return on equity to ordinary shareholders to new heights for
the Group, reaching 27.8% in this half-year.

» While this is very pleasing for shareholders, it is unsustainable into the long-
term for a few reasons:

* Firstly, it is based on unusually strong equity market returns. The darker bars
on this chart are what we refer to as normalised returns. We substitute the
actual equity market performance with a longer term yield — basically the 10
year bond rate plus an equity market premium of 4%. This removes a lot of the
volatility;

» Secondly, the last year or so has been a period when ‘the stars have aligned’
for insurers with all the cyclical elements being favourable. While we don't see
a reversion to very tough times in each cyclical factor in the foreseeable future,
we do not expect recent favourable conditions to be sustained at these levels.

 Finally, we don’t believe average returns much above 1.5 - 1.6 times WACC
(weighted average cost of capital) over a whole insurance cycle provide a
reasonable balance between the needs of customers and shareholders. BUT
we haven't reached that stage yet. Our average ROE since listing is only
11.6% and, even after normalising for investment market returns, it is 13.5% -
which is less than 1.5 times WACC.

» So, while the underlying performance has improved substantially — as
demonstrated by the dark blue bars — the performance needs to be considered
over a complete cycle.
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Outlook - drivers (l%

* Profitability outiook influenced by a number of interacting !AG
factors Austrafs.
Gioupy
* External
—. Good economic performance in Australla and New
Zealand

— Increasing competitive pressures

-~ Reinsurance rates stable

— Stable liability classes due to tort law reforms

- Investment market performance unlikely to be sustained
* Intemal

— Improving customer satisfaction and employee
engagement
— Ongoing risk selection improving our mix

~ Further expense savings to be realised
Insurance Australia Group Limited

NEﬁA SGJiO SGIC Q e m':“u N4 ABN 60 090 739 923
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* There are many factors which affect our business and thus our outlook. In assessing
the business prospects, we need to look at these and their inter-action with each other.

» Dealing first with the external factors:
-Our business is influenced by the economies in which we operate — economic
growth and inflation drive demand for insurance and the values of assets to be

insured. The good economic performance and outlook for the Australian and New
Zealand economies is therefore a positive for us,

- Increasing competitive pressures are definitely a feature of the market at present.
This is largely driven by the industry’s good performance and the availability of
capital. While we see isolated incidences of what we believe may be irrational
behaviour, we do not see this as a major issue for the local market and we, as
noted earlier by George, continue to adhere to the discipline of not writing business
at prices that cannot service the capital we believe is needed to back it.

- Reinsurance rates are stable.
- The outlook for business affected by tort reforms, including the key statutory
schemes, is quite stable. This is key to our ability to continue to pass on savings in
premiums in the relevant products.
- Most commentators don't believe the stellar performance of the investment
markets will be sustained in the coming year. We agree with this.

* Turning to internal factors:
- We have, as we noted earlier, improving customer satisfaction indicators and

growing employee engagement. These support the positive momentum in our
business;

- The ongoing focus on, and improvements in, the data being applied in our risk
selection is improving the portfolio mix; and

- We have work in progress to deliver further expense savings.

» These factors have all been considered in how we view the prospects for our
business.
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* On balance

— Now expect the FY05 insurahce margin to be at least
15.0%, subject to no further major losses

— NEP growth of 5-7% for FYO05 is unchanged

. Strategy remains unchanged -~ focus on optimising our
franchise in Australia and New Zealand and seeking overseas
investment opportunities to supplement future earnings

insurance Aistraiia Glouv Limited
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* Having considered those facférs, and the results we have ahnounéed today,
we now expect that the FY05 insurance margin to be at least 15%, subject to

" no further major losses.

. Our expectations for NEP (net earned premium) growth of 5 — 7% for FY05 is

unchanged.

* Our strategy also remains unchanged. We will continue down the dual track

of optimising our franchise in Australia and New Zealand and seeking
overseas investment opportunities, in the general insurance sector, to
supplement the future earnings profile of the business.
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ABN 60 090 739 923

388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222 . -

iag.com.ay.

24 February 2005

Manager, Company Announcements Office

Australian Stock Exchange Limited )
Level 4, Exchange Centre
20 Bridge Street - | l AG

SYDNEY NSW 2000 Insurance

Australia
Group

Dear Sir/Madam
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG")
CORRECTION TO EX-DIVIDEND DATE FOR INTERIM DIVIDEND

We advise that the ex-dividend date for the interim dividend of 12 cents per ordinary share
fully franked payable on 18 April 2005 that was shown on page 1 of the Investor Report
released to the market today should have been 9 March 2005 instead of the incorrect date
reported of 10 March 2005. o

Yours sincerely

Anne O’Driscoll
Group Company Secretary &
Head of Investor Relations

Sl ¢ ™ .
NRMA SG/O SGIC @ nSurance N4

INSURANCE

NACSCDept\CSCUser\ASX\2005\ AG\FEB240205 Coorection to ex Div date.doc
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Non-Business and Non-Trading Days J

Attachment
Non-business days and non-trading days for 2005
Public holiday Date Public Holiday | All States All States
applies to the | Business day Trading day
following (Settlement/ (SEATS open/
states No settlement) SEATS closed)
New Year’s Day Monday 3 All States Non-business day | Non-trading
‘ January' : Day -
Australia Day Wednesday 26 All States Non-business day | Non-trading
: January day
Labour Day Monday 7 March | WA Business day Trading day
Labour Day/Eight | Monday 14 March | VIC/TAS? Non-business day | Trading day
Hour Day :
Canberra Day Monday 21 March | ACT Business day Trading day
Good Friday Friday 25 March | All States Non-business day | Non-trading
day
Easter Monday Monday 28 March | All States Non-business day | Non-trading
day
ANZAC Day Monday 25 April | All States Non-business day | Non-trading
: day
Labour Day Monday 2 May QLD Business day Trading day
Adelaide Cup Monday 16 May SA Business day Trading day
Day
Foundation Day | Monday 6 June WA Business day Trading day
Queen’s Birthday Monday 13 June All States Non-business day | Non-trading
except WA day
Bank Holiday Monday 1 August | NSW? Non-business day | Trading day
Labour Day Monday 26 WA Non-business day | Trading day
/Queen’s Birthday | September

! Monday 3 January is a substitute public holiday for Saturday 1 January
2.Not a state-wide public holiday - TAS

3 Not a state-wide public holiday - NSW

[ December 2004
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED
ABN 60 090 739 923
Directory

Stock Exchange Listings
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ASX code for ordinary shares: IAG

ASX codes for reset preference shares: IAGPA (Listed June 2002) and IAGPB (Listed June 2003)

ASX code for Reset Exchangeable Securities: IANG (Listed January 2005)

Investor Information/Administration
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford VIC 3067
Or by mail to

GPO Box 4709

Melbourne VIC 3001

Telephone: 1300 360 688

Email: iag@computershare.com.au
Facsimile: (03) 9473 2470

Website: www.iag.com.au

Investor Relations

Email: investor.relations@iag.com.au

Ms Anne O'Driscoll

Group Company Secretary & Head of Investor Relations

Telephone: (02) 9292 3169
Facsimile: (02) 9292 3109
Email: anne.o’drscoll@iag.com.au

Registered Office

Insurance Australia Group Limited
Level 26, 388 George Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Telephone; (02) 9292 9222

Key dates for shareholders - proposed

Interim dividend — ordinary shares

- Ex-dividend date

- Record date

- Payment date

Half-yearly reset preference shares dividends due
Announcement of annual results to 30 June 2005
Final dividend - ordinary shares

- Ex-dividend date

- Record date

- Payment date

Annual General Meeting
Half-yearly reset preference shares dividends due

Announcement of half year results - 31 Decembgr 2005

10 March 2005
16 March 2005
18 April 2005
15 June 2005
19 August 2005

8 September 2005
14 September 2005
17 October 2005
9 November 2005
15 December 2005
23 February 2006

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 923



Insurance Australia
Group Limited

ABN 60 090 739 923

388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222
iag.com.au

9 March 2005

Manager, Company Announcements Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre

20 Bridge Street

SYDNEY NSW 2000

frsurance
Australia
Group

Dear SirfMadam
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG’)
INVESTOR PRESENTATION
Please find attached presentation by Mr Michael Hawker, Chief Executive Officer,
IAG to the Citigroup Australia & New Zealand Investment Conference to be held in

London later this evening. :

Yours sincerely
2 . ¢

Glenn Revell
Company Secretary

Attachment (20 pages)

e : ’ "IN swann
NRMA SGIO SGIC \cGU N, gy N4
INSURANCE
NACSCDeph\CSCUseAAS X 20050AGIMARNS0305 Investor Presentation Cover Letter.doc
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Presentation to Citigroup Australia &
New Zealand Investment Conference

Michael Hawker, Chief Executive Officer
9 March 2005
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Important information )/
IAG

The Inf jon In this pi tion is an overview and does not tain all infy ! Yy to an i decis! Insurance
Austratia
The information d in this p: and ying matertais has been prepared in good taith by IAG. No Group
ion or warranty, exp: or implied, is made as to the accuracy, adequacy or reliability of any statements, estimates
or opinlons or other Information i In this pr 1t To the i extent permitted by law, IAG, its directors,

officers, employees and agents disclaim all llability and responsibility (including without limitation any liabllity arising from fautt
or nogligence on the part of IAG, its directors, officers, employees and agents) for any direct or indirect loss or damage which
may be suﬁered by lny reclpiem through use of or reliance on anything contalmd In.or omitted from this presentation. tn

"‘amustrelyonthelrown 1 of WAG, Including the merits and risks involved.
Invesm:houldconsunwlmmelrown togat, tax, 1 and/or fi 1al advi in connecbon with any acquisition of
securities.

This pt tion ts not a prospectus nor an offer of shares for subscription or sale in any jurisdi This pr ion does

not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, securities in the United States or to any U.S. person, as defined
In Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”). Securities may not be offered or
sold In the United States, or to or for the account of any U.S. person(asdaﬁmdhkegulaﬂmSundermUS.SewﬂﬁesAct),
unless the securities have been registered under the U.S. Securities Act or an P from reg is ilabl

Certain ts ined in this pr tation may constitute “forward-look ™ or about “future
matters” for the purposes of section 728(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) -ndlor “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the U.S. Pﬂvaewriﬂesngaﬁon Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements speak only s of the
date of this p The for | Involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that
mayuuselAGsacmalmsum perfom\anceor hi to differ rialty from any future resuits, performance or

d or Implied by these forward-looking statements. NeftherlAG nor any other person, gives any
repmsenm!on. assurance or guarantee that the occurrenca of the events expressed or implied in any forward looking

In this p ion will y occur.

This p: ion is being tied to you solely for your Information and may not be reproduced or distributed to any other
person {inctuding any general distribution in the United States) or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose without the
prior written permission of I1AG,

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars.

Pan? ; y IR swne L Australia Group Limted
NRMA' SGJO  SGIC @ -\ b N4 ABN $0.000 T30 823
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Who we are ... (}/L)
‘ I1AG

fnsurance
Austratia

« Australia & New Zealand's largest insurers — over $6.4bn GWP in Group
FY04
* Over 30% in each market and leading shares in most products

— latest available data is 2002 but remains indicative
« Own and operate leading brands

% market share

Australia New Zealand
50% 0%
A0% 40% 4
[
0% 2 %
i . . 43%
20% < . E 2% 38% 39%
* . . - 2933 .
7 - . - . - . . B
0% - 0% 4
Motor Home Motor Commercial Employer Motor Home Comm, Comm. Comm.
liability liability Motor property tiability

b d s 3 “Ew . Insurance Australia Group Limhed
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Outline O
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» Our improved performance

« Strategy and outlook
~ Organic progress and outlook
~ Asia

* Questions

, N R v I Austrakia Group Limited
NRMA SGjO  SGIc @ AN N4 ABN B0 090 730 829
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- Customers and people positive t”}
' I1AG

Claim satisfaction trends Insuranee
100% motor and home {direct channel} ét{lg‘:_ir;!ia
o5 Engagement of our people
0% IAG 2003 (45%) LAG 2004 (53%)
B5% 65%
BO%
75%
T0%
Sept-01 May-02 Dec02 May03 Decd3 May-04 Nov-04
——Motor —g— Homs
Averaps month complaints vs Policies in force a% 100%
(AG retall brands - sxct CTP & Nechs products)
2750 1,000
2700 Claims satisfaction improvements,
- ; w0 reduced complaint levels and
<o increased engagement of our
S5m0 2 people are are all positive indicators
%0 o for sustained performance
Dec-02 Jun0a Dec-03 04 Dac-04

' No. Compiints (average 6 months)
—m—PF (Motor & Home [all states, exct. VIC) (murage & months)

. ~ W I Australia Group Limtted
NniﬁA SGio  SGIC @ L\ FrETi N4 BN 0s0 TR0 BRS
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Key insurance ratios | )/
IAG

0 Expense ratio Loss ratio nsurance
% Austraiia
28.0% Group
24.0%
22.0%
20.0%
18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
FYOt FYG2 FY03 FYo4 1HCS
| Administration ratio & FSL impact m Commission ratio
Combined ratio Insurance margin {before tax)
16.0%
105.0% 16.0%
14.0%
100.0% Long-tarm axpectation 9-12%
120%{en o= ar - - -
95.0% 100%
8.0%
90.0% 6.0%
4.0% o
85.0%
2.0% 4
80.0% 4 0.0% 4
FYo1 Fraz £Yoa Fyos 1HOS FYot Froz FY03 FYos 1HOS
pan . 3 "M swann Insurance Australia Group Limited
NRMA SsGio saic \ccu &um..
et ==

ABN 60 080 739 923 -
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A$m

Contributions to profit before tax

C

Components of IAG EBITDA (exc! OEl) !A(E
NsSurance
200 $718m $792m Australia
800 $559m Group
700
600 $263m
500
400 y
300 $142m
200
100
(100) ; (27) (21) (13)
(200) (19)
1H03 2H03 1H04 2H04 1H05
Winsurance result % trvestment return on shareholder funds W Non-insurance margin® & Non-recurring items

“Non-insurance margin includes net corparate expensss, NSW insurance protection tex, Finencial services result {diswvthd 4/1/04), foe basod

businosses.

* Increased earnings driven by combination of

Sustained improvement in insurance operations
Realisation of synergies from CGLI/NZ| acquisitions
Increased investment returns on shareholders’ funds

(cov S mm WA

NRMA SGJO SGIC e
g |-
INSURANCE

Insurance Austrafia Group Limited
ABN 60 090 739 822
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Ongoing focus delivering results )

Sustained improvement in margins All business segments contributing IAG
. insurance
. o Austraiia
E 18.0% 200 Group
@ 18.0%
£ om fd
5 Long-term sxpectation 8-12% H
;— 12.0% oo vy ome == w—s - i o
'@ 10.0% g
g aom Ha
§ 8.0% £
£ o f
:
EREE
0.06% -
FYO1 Fyaz £Y03 FYos 1HOS 4 24 hacd
. & Austzaien personat ines @ Auctalen comImensial limes 11 temationa:
o Strong retention rates in key portfolios Sustained capital strength
va% PUNES— _a
2% ~
Z 0% r.—————"—‘k - - :E)
2 es% =
o g
T sen 35
& % 5
©Q
0% =
78%
re%
203 D4 2H04 1HOS* 2H03 1HD4 2H04 1H0S
W bRerediaTY COfmeNTial —g—— DIBC! motr —t~ Direct home .
e et s do O 14 N Insurance Austatia Limited
NRMA scio saic \ceu &N N RENSO WO TR RS
8
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Return on equity improved Y

Annualised return on equity IAG
30.0% Insurance

28.0% Australia
26.0% Group
24.0%
22.0%
20.0%
18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
(2.0%)
(4.0%)

_ Average normalised 13.5%
=~ Average actual 11.6%

FY01 FY02 FY03 FYD4 1H05

M ROE {(Actual) attributable to ordinary shareholcers
m ROE (Normatised) attributable to ordinary shareholders

Note: Normalised calculation was based on two adjustments to actual NPAT to ordinary shareholders:
1. Exclusion of goodwill amortisation and non-recurring items

2. Shareholders’ fund return adjusted to be equivalent to the daily average 10-year bond rate for the yea},
plus 4% ;
g . R e Insurance Austratia Group Limited
NRMA SGIO SGIC @ B EEm N4 ABN S0 20073923
el =

INSURANCE
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Interim dividend increased by 50% tpj
IAG

lasurance
Australia
30.0 Group

25.0

15.0

Cents

10.0

5.0

0.0

1HO1 1H02 1HO3 1HO4 1HOS

H Interim dividend BEPS

Continued improvement in interim dividends — supported by increased EPS

o ") o I Australia Group Limited
NRMA SG/O  SGIC @ T N4 ABN 80,060 7% @23

INSURANCE
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Strategy & outlook

~~~~~~~

IAG

insurance
Australia
Grodp

Insurance Australia Group Limited
ABN 60 000 739 923

g



Strategic goals (’j/)
IAG

Insurance

+ Generate top quartile total shareholder return Rastala

+ Deliver a return on equity of at least 1.5 times weighted average
cost of capital

« Establish an Asian foothold
* Maintain an 80:20 mix of short-tail:long-tail premiums

* Maintain a ‘AA’ category rating.

. . IR v i Australa Limited
NEMA scio salc \ceu . I3 N4 ferirtrtate

INSURANCE

12
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‘Strategic progress

)
IAG

{nsurance
Australia
Group

Simultaneously researching
now for internationaltty—>
applicable core
competencies
& el

Progress

We believe there are
significant opportunities
locally for the next few

«—— Delivered years

Time
. ) “HR [ Australia Group Limbed
NEMA SGiO  sgic Qc;u L\ RGN (2] AN SO0 TS
=] 13
INSURANCE - .
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Diversified portfolio — and operating w
conditions for organic business yrd

insurence
Austraiia
$6.6bn Group
se'4bn [E25N » A
UEEIERE 3%
Statutory
classes
Commercial
Short-tait
Personal
lines
Fyar FYes Fyss FYDO FYO1 FYo2 FYo3 Y08 1HOS
Anrgainod
AMotor mHoms gHealh GOt Shor-tsl g Shart-taill Commaereiat Liateity ECTP/Motor tiadllity  » Workers' Comp
yay Y ) B . {nsurance Austraia Group Limied
NRMA SGJO  SGIC @ L RO N4 ABN 60 090 739 823
e . 14
INSURANCE
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Outlook — drivers for organic business )
. Proﬁtability outlook influenced by a number of interacting IAG

fnsurance

faCtOI‘S . Austraiia

Grolp

s External

Good economic performance in Australia and New
Zealand '

S SN S
L TP IEW TETGIMS

O AT TO I SRS 4 JRp g
TOHNENCE UNGREY

~
¥

v bl fen by ey e o] s
rsatigfaction ano employes

NIE.!I\}A SGjO SGIC @J By, ABN 60 090 739 823
INSURAMCE = -

Insurance Australia Geoup Limited
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Growth in domestic premium exceeds U
GDP 3

IAG
Buscelo

§ 20 AGR for policies of 7.3% : ggg
5 15 : : %28
: 220 5
c 10 200 &
& 0
& 5 L 160 ©
i L 140
g - 120
z 0 100
o.

S5 > B O A PO O AN

o O 0 Q O VO

@@@@@@.@@@Q&\
>

Source: ABS for GDP & APRA General Insurance Statistics (December 1993 ~ December 2001 & June 2002), excluding
reinsurers. No APRA statistics published for periods post June 2002 and no returns lodged by HIH post December 2000.

g "I e Insurance Austraiia Group Limited
NEMA SGiO SGic \cGu Mimn. Iy N4 ABN 60 030 739 23
— = Q e — "

INSURANCE
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Outlook — drivers for organic business (’L/

* Profitability outlook influenced by a number of interacting 5{\GC
faCtOI’S é‘\rjjtx;f:z:iiae
* External
— Good economic performance in Australia and New
Zealand : :

— Increasing competitive pressures

— Reinsurance rates stable

— Stable liability classes due to tort law reforms

—  Investment market performance unlikely to be sustained
* Internal

— Improving customer satisfaction and employee
engagement

— Ongoing risk selection improving our mix
— Further expense savings to be realised

2 3 y ° syl Insurance Austratia Group Limited
NEMiA  5GJO0 Saic \ceu .. srare L G ABN 60 090 739 023
INSURANCE F—— . 17
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Establishing an Asian foothold "ﬁj |

- 1AG

insurance

Focus on countries with strong growth prospects for general Bustli
insurance with suitable environments

—~ Multiplier effect of economic progress and increased
general insurance penetration

—  Primary focus on China, Thailand, Malaysia & India
— Secondary focus on Hong Kong & Singapore

Best option to add value is in personal lines, especially motor
— Joint venture with “control of the pen”

Portfolio approach envisaged

Individual transactions not likely to exceed half a year’s
earnings

Aim to supplement medium term earnings and become material
in the longer term

. i “ER Insurance Austrafia Group Limked
nEma scio soic (cou Eiun. I N4 ABN 60 00 750 423

INSURANCE

18
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Share price performance since listing (lL/ '
IAG

insurance
Austraiia
Group
IAG Share Price Performancs
e SAPIASX200 Index w==e=|AG Share $ ====MSC} WORLD EX AUS index === ASX/S&F 200
INSURANCE INDEX
b4 ) R o Insurance Austratia Group Limited
NEMA SGIO -SGIC \cGu X N4 ABN 60 090 739 823
INSURANCE = ] 1®
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Questions

Pigny 4 .
N@}A SGro %

INSURANCE

@ AN N4

IAG

insurance
Austratiz
Group

Insyrance Australia Group Limited
ABN 60 080 739 823
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ABN 60 090 739 923

388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222
iag.com.au

8 March 2005

Manager, Company Announcements Office » )2

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre

20 Bridge Street ‘ lAG

SYDNEY NSW 2000 Insurance
Australia
Group

Dear Sir/Madam

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG’)
INTERIM REPORT 2005
In accordance with Listing Rule 3.17, please find enclosed IAG Interim

Report 2005, which is to be sent to shareholders from today.

Yours sincerely

Anne O'Driscoll
Group Company Secretary &
Head of Investor Relations

Attachment (2 pages)

e : "IN swann
NRMA SGJjO SGIC \CGU nSurnce N4

INSURANCE
N:ACSCDept\CSCUsenASX\2005\IAG\MARASX Cover Letterinterim Rpt.doc
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